Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Regeneration and
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be
held on Tuesday, 26 February 2019 at 5.30 pm in
Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR
LIBERAL
DEMOCRAT
Heseltine
Jamil
Stubbs
Whitaker
Dodds
Berry
Mohammed
Salam
Alternates:
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR
Riaz
Whiteley

Amran
Iqbal
Johnson
H Khan
A Ahmed

LIBERAL
DEMOCRAT
R Ahmed

GREEN
Love

GREEN
Warnes

NON VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS
Nicola Hoggart
Environment Agency
Julia Pearson
Bradford Environmental Forum
Notes:





This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by
contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if
Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.
If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer
named at the foot of that agenda item.

From:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor

To:

Agenda Contact: Asad Shah - 01274 432280
E-Mail: asad.shah@bradford.gov.uk

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:

3.

(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

MINUTES
Recommended –
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July, 18 September, 2
October, 23 October and 20 November 2018 be signed as correct
records (previously circulated).
(Asad Shah – 01274 432280)

4.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

5.

REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Any referrals that have been made to this Committee up to and including
the date of publication of this agenda will be reported at the meeting.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES
6.

REGENERATION - UPDATE ON ACTIVITY IN KEIGHLEY AND
SHIPLEY

1 - 26

This report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “AI”) updates
Scrutiny Committee on progress with regeneration in Keighley and
Shipley.
Recommended –
Members are asked to consider the content of this report.
(Paul North – 01535 618095)
7.

GET BRADFORD WORKING AND SKILLS FOR WORK UPDATE
The report of the Interim Strategic Director, Children’s Services
(Document “AJ”) provides an update on Get Bradford Working and
Skills for Work and provides details of achievements and future plans.

27 - 92

Recommended –
(1)

That the Committee note the content of this report and
welcome the continued success of Get Bradford Working in
providing access to employment opportunities for those
living within Bradford and the District.

(2)

That the Committee comment on the work of the
partnership in delivering GBW.

(3)

That the members of the Committee promote GBW and
STEP within their networks.
(Phil Hunter – 01274 439575)

8.

REGENERATION
AND
ENVIRONMENT
OVERVIEW
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19

AND

93 - 98

The report of the Chair of the Regeneration and Environment Overview
and Scrutiny Committee (Document “AK”) presents the Committee
Work Programme 2018-19.
Recommended –
(1)

That the Work programme 2018-19 continues to be
regularly reviewed during the year.
(Licia Woodhead – 01274 432574)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

Agenda Item 6/

Report of the Strategic Director to the meeting of the
Regeneration and Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee to be held on 26th February 2019

AI
Subject:
REGENERATION – UPDATE ON ACTIVITY IN KEIGHLEY AND SHIPLEY

Summary statement:
This report updates Scrutiny Committee on progress with regeneration in Keighley and
Shipley.

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director - Place

Portfolio:
Regeneration, Planning & Transport

Report Contact: Paul North
Phone: (01535) 618095
E-mail: paul.north@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Regeneration and Environment

Page 1

1.

SUMMARY

1.1.

This report updates Scrutiny Committee on regeneration activity in Keighley and
Shipley since reports were heard on Keighley in December 2017 and on Shipley in
February 2018.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

Bradford is one of the biggest and fastest growing districts in the UK and is the
youngest city in the UK. Business success, jobs growth, skills and improved
transport connectivity are essential to our ambition to be the UK’s fastest growing
economy over the coming decade.

2.2

The district has great assets to draw upon, including our young and enterprising
population, innovative and productive businesses, strong knowledge institutions, a
tradition of private and public partnership and increasing momentum provided by
the regeneration of our city and town centres.

2.3

Airedale combines business activity, spread through the District’s towns, with an
attractive, connected and residential lifestyle corridor. These attributes were
described in the Airedale Masterplan of 2005. The Airedale Partnership, a public
private partnership which commissioned the plan continues to meet to influence
local development. The Masterplan’s strength was in pointing up opportunity. The
following report updates on activity that pursues current opportunities, delivering for
the benefit of the whole of the Bradford District and contributing to the wider City
Region economy.

3.

Local Business Development Zones

3.1

A scheme to undertake land use studies covering three key employment areas in
the District’s main urban centres of Bradford, Keighley and Shipley in order to
produce area improvement plans that will increase SME business growth, job
creation and skills/training opportunities by achieving a step change in the quality
and performance of each area.
The proposed study areas are:
 Bradford Zone – Bowling Back Lane/Leeds Road area
 Shipley Zone – Salts Mill Road/Dockfield Road area
 Keighley Zone 1 – Dalton Lane area
Zone 2 – Royd Ings area.
The Council’s Economic Development Service will procure consultants to assist in
carrying out land use studies, market research and development planning
exercises. These will produce medium term improvement plans to make each zone
more attractive and efficient locations
for business
to operate and invest in. They
Page
2

will encourage the reuse and development of employment sites and existing
premises and increase the choice for businesses seeking to expand and relocate
within the District.
Work on the studies will take place over this year with final reports expected by
September 2019.
4.

Keighley

East Parade Shopping Development

4.1

Former developer - Stainsby Grange, was unable to deliver a scheme on the site
that they had assembled and cleared over several years. They had full planning
permission for their vision. Unfortunately they failed to sign up sufficient businesses
to trigger construction against a difficult economic background.

4.2

Current Developer U+I, acquired the site, which fronts onto East Parade, 2 years
ago. Since that time they have worked to assemble a successful package of
committed end-users to trigger the build of new retail premises in Keighley. The key
ingredient in delivering a scheme is meeting the needs of sufficient retailers with a
wish to expand their operation within a specific timescale. The site represents the
designated grow-on space for new retail in the centre of the town.

4.3

The current owner, which operates nationally, has had an on-going dialogue with
the Council in preparation for submitting a pre-planning application, which they did
in 2018. (The Council offers its pre-application service to illustrate the requirements
and preparation needed for a full planning application.)
Almost as soon as the application was submitted, the weakness in retail nationally
directly affected the businesses interested and the scheme was setback. During the
course of 2018 a large number of household name businesses have struggled or
failed. Their issues can include a mix of; a need to modernise, historic debt and online competition.
Work however is continuing to add to the core of interested businesses. The
developer is meeting with interested parties and the dialogue between the
developer and the Council continues.

5.

Former Keighley College buildings

5.1.1 The former Keighley College building on North Street was demolished in 2017,
following an extended marketing campaign.
5.1.2 A strip of the cleared site provided space to build extra carriageway – a left turn only
lane from North St. into Cavendish St. along with corresponding arrangements at
the other side of the junction. The scheme was identified in a report to Executive in
March 2016, as one of a number of measures that would provide assistance in
tackling congestion in the town centre.

Page 3

Works on North Street were undertaken in 2018 and have contributed to improved
journey times through town. Officers are monitoring 2 aspects of the implemented
scheme.
a) the no entry sign into Albert Street from Highfield Rd which was being
disregarded by some drivers, putting themselves and others at risk from on-coming
one way traffic.
b) the functioning of the limited parking outside the row of shops opposite the civic
centre on North St.
The expected works to begin on Hard Ings Rd in spring 2019 (see 8) will also
contribute to the relief of congestion following completion in spring 2020.
5.2

Cavendish St Building demolition.

5.2.1 The works compound at the end of the former college site has been retained to
facilitate the demolition of the Cavendish Street building as previously requested by
Scrutiny Committee. Planning permission for the demolition has been granted and
preparatory work has been underway. The demolition work will be tendered in early
2019 and it is proposed that demolition will commence later this year.
5.3

The intention to provide a Public Sector Hub on the former college site (as
previously reported) remains. The Council continues to talk to major public sector
organisations to confirm their accommodation needs whilst recognising the
principals of One Public Estate. This national policy encourages the public sector to
co-locate, where possible, in the interest of efficiency and co-operation. The
achievement of a proposal that; meets the needs of the organisations involved,
works through their own planning arrangements and which can operate as a
complementary development is being actively pursued.

5.4.1 Developments off Chesham Street/Dalton Lane - The former site of the Harold
Town Building. Of the 3 former college buildings the Council acquired, the Harold
Town Building was the first to be demolished. It stood on Chesham Street off Dalton
Lane. Part of the land cleared was sold to Teconnex a neighbour to the site to
assist in their expansion.
5.4.2 The remaining land was part of an agreement with Turner Developments Ltd who
also own the adjacent site. They have been responsible for many successful
improvements to sites throughout Keighley, notably in the Royd Ings area and will
provide a new industrial estate off Dalton Lane. A planning application ref:
18/05224/MAF was submitted in December 2018 and a decision is expected in the
spring for the first phase of the development - two units of approximately 19,500 sq
ft each.
Invest in Bradford are currently dealing with enquiries from a number of interested
parties. The site will accommodate a similar amount of floor-space in subsequent

Page 4

phases. The remaining areas of the site will come forward for planning approval and
will provide much needed business space close to the town centre.
6.0

Discover Keighley – Keighley Business Improvement District (Keighley BID)

6.1

This was the first BID in the Bradford District and is now into the 4th year of its 5
year term.
Keighley BID’s first term will end Dec 2020. Planning for a campaign for a second
term is already underway.

6.2

The work is directed by an active Board of levy paying businesses that meet
monthly. They come from the retail, service, education and property sectors in the
town.
The BID is a private company limited by guarantee, with the Council having one
voting seat on the Board. The Portfolio holder for Regeneration Planning and
Transport represents the Council. The Airedale Masterplan Manager is co-opted to
the Board in a non-voting capacity.
The rules for the arrangements between the Council and the BID are documented
in a Memorandum of Agreement which is publicly available on the BID website.
http://discoverkeighley.co.uk/keighley-bid/legal-documents

6.3

Work falls under 4 headings: Marketing and Promotion, Safety and Security,
Backing Business and Ease of Access. The BID has a Levy income expectation of
£236k annually and collection rates have been very high at over 96%. CBMDC
collects the levy on behalf of the BID and this is managed alongside the collection
of Business Rates.

6.4

The number of BID Towns and Cities continues to grow with Bradford BID being
approved in October. Otley won a second term in Nov 2018 and Skipton will hold a
ballot for another term in January 2019. Preparations for an IlkleyBID are underway
with a ballot in the spring of 2019.
Whilst this activity demonstrates that BIDS are becoming more normal than
exceptional, there is a continuing need to demonstrate strong performance and
value. Regular positive coverage of Keighley Bid’s activity, under the Discover
Keighley brand, in the local press and buy in from local business is reward for the
large volume of energy and hard work that has been a feature.

6.5

National trends in retail continue to make life “on the high street” very difficult no
matter how active a town may be. Keighley has launched its bi-annual
Independents campaign on Nov 25th to Dec 20th to bolster the local business
element and this continues to grow. 81 independent businesses participated.
Top Prize of £1,000 in shopping vouchers with 5 prizes of £100. It’s not all about
retail though and the Keighley Business Club has been set up to respond to the

Page 5

needs of this aspect of the town’s life. It was recently addressed by Will Holman
from the Bank of England on Brexit impact and has a young professionals strand.
The BID is working with the Council to provide free Wi-fi across the town in early
2019 and improve the CCTV coverage.
Activity includes a programme of well received events – Keighley by the Sea (in
Airedale Shopping Centre) Bushtucker Challenge, Creepy Keighley, Christmas
Lights spectacular…
New Poster sites, Digital advertising, Professional Photography and video service,
on street radio /advertising, Broadcast radio through Pulse 2, Townwatch security
radios, Keighley Business Club (Which has Headline sponsored the Keighley and
Airedale Business Awards), a loyalty scheme, utility cost reduction, parking
subsidies and car park wraps, signage, seasonal lighting, on-going social media
promoting individual business activity and events. (The record views for one
business is held by the Royal Oak with 82,897 by Nov 18)
The website which carries on-going core information and news and directories,
equipment loan, vacant unit vinyls promoting what is here and serving Keighley
(former M&S site) Car park wraps, parking permits, apprenticeship funding…This is
not a comprehensive list!
7.

Beechcliffe site Keighley

7.1

A Council owned site adjacent to the Aire Valley Trunk Road which has been
allocated for employment use. Discussions to sell the site to a local company to
assist their expansion are at an advanced stage. The remainder of the site will be
remediated to provide serviced plots for additional modern industrial
accommodation for sale or to let.

8.0

Hard Ings Road

8.1.1 The A650 is a key route between Bradford and Keighley, as well as linking Skipton
to the Pendle area of Lancashire. The route is predominantly a dual carriageway,
except for a short section, known as Hard Ings Road. Consequently, this part of the
route is a pinch point for traffic. The resultant congestion impacts upon drivers using
the A650.
The improvement works for Hard Ings Road will reduce congestion and improve
road safety for pedestrians and cyclists. With a growing residential population in the
vicinity, an increase in traffic will have an effect on congestion in Keighley town
centre. Keighley is the principal town of Airedale and an important industrial
economic base. Reducing congestion along Hard Ings Road will increase
investment opportunities in the area and increase economic growth.
8.1.2 The scheme has received investment through the West Yorkshire Plus Transport
Fund as part of the Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Growth Deal a £1 billion package of government investment to accelerate growth and create jobs
across Leeds City Region.

Page 6

8.1.3 Hard Ings Road will be widened to provide two lanes in both directions between
Beechcliffe and Bradford Road roundabouts
The existing junction of Hard Ings Road with Lawkholme Lane will be signalised,
with existing turning movements retained. This will incorporate a 'toucan' crossing
for use by pedestrians and cyclists.
On the approach to Beechcliffe Roundabout from the A629, an additional lane will
be provided.
Traffic signals will be installed at the junction to improve operation of the junction
and reduce journey times for road users.
8.2

These works will remove a bottleneck to traffic within the District. Transport for the
North is currently involved in study work assessing the relative benefits of schemes
that would assist in East West movements between Yorkshire and Lancashire.
Improvement to Hard Ings will help the immediate conditions around Keighley, but
has the potential to further assist if road connections out of the District to other
economies are assisted by Transport for the North.

9.

Silsden – Steeton. Bridge across A650

9.1

West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) has undertaken the procurement of
consultancy work needed to develop a business case for a bridge crossing,
between Steeton and Silsden, over the A650 trunk road.

9.2

The Government has provided funding of £700,000 for this purpose. A detailed
business case is necessary to spell out in detail, the financial and economic
justification for a bridge, or other crossing of the trunk road, in order that full funding
for its delivery can be sought from the Department of Transport.

9.3

The commission has been awarded to WSP consultants who have begun
assessment of the potential options. Management of the commission is being
undertaken by Bradford’s Structures team. It is anticipated that the outline business
case will be developed by Spring 2019.
There is a long standing wish to see the connection made between these 2
settlements.

10.

Memory Garden on Church Green and Low Street

10.1

A memory garden aimed at providing seating, at the centre of a scented garden
space has been created on Church Green. The planting choice was informed by
Dementia Friendly Keighley as scent brings back memories for many people
affected by dementia. The request for such a feature was backed by local branches
of national retail chains; Boots, Santander, the Co-op and Marks and Spencer who
believe/ed that it would add to Keighley’s offer. The majority of the funding for the
memory garden was from the Local Transport Plan - £79k. Smaller amounts from
Keighley Bid £5k, Dementia Friendly Keighley - £5k and Airedale partnership £500.
This location now provides an improved place to sit, just off some of Keighley’s
main shopping thoroughfares. The works continued the improvements made
through the investment of local businesses, the Council and the Heritage Lottery

Page 7

Fund to many heritage properties and the public realm along North Street through
the Keighley Town Heritage Initiative.
11.

Low Street Keighley.

11.1

Improvement work will continue in the remainder of the year with a further phase of
building to replace the surface of Low Street. Works will be undertaken on the
section from the top of Low St where it joins the Memory garden/Church Green, to
the junction with Market Street. The surface is currently well worn and considerably
patched. This represents a Phase 1 with £170k from the Local Transport Plan and
£5k from Keighley BID bringing the public realm up to a smart serviceable, durable
and modern standard
Further funding beyond Phase 1 is being sought to complete the remainder of Low
Street, however this is not yet in place. The section for immediate attention is in the
poorest condition. Works will begin on the first phase this financial year.

11.2

There will also be a Traffic regulation order that will aim to remove vehicles from
parking on this pedestrianized area between designated times. The appropriate
consultation will be undertaken. This physical improvement will complement the
activity of local businesses and Discover Keighley, (the Keighley Business
Improvement District.) The BID can contribute small amounts to such schemes but
does not have capital resources.

12.

Keighley and Airedale Business Awards

12.1

This partnership event is now in its seventh year and will take place on June 21st,
2019 in Victoria Hall Keighley.
It is a not for profit venture and arranged by businesses and those who help
business. Sponsors last year included Headline sponsor - Keighley Business Club
(a key project backed by Keighley BID), Airedale Enterprise Services, Keighley
College, Keighley Training Consortium, The Alternative Board (TAB), Barclays,
AWB Charlesworth, Snugpak, Rotherwood, Keighley Town Council, Cavendish
Business Centre, Blacks Solicitors, Cosurica. Additional sponsorship came from
Airedale Shopping Centre, and Ad:Venture. Bradford Council provided some
financial support in 2017 and 2018 and contributes some officer time to assist in the
organisation.

12.2

The Lord Mayor, Cllr.Zafar Ali, opened the event on June18th, which was also
addressed by the Leader of the Council.
The event has appreciated the participation of broadcaster Harry Gration and once
again the largest available venue – Victoria Hall Keighley, was completely sold out
with over 240 in attendance.
Overall Business of the Year was IconX which produces key-cutting machines
which can be found in supermarkets/major retail outlets across the country and
beyond. The company, which is based in Silsden, is expanding and exporting
across the world. Their My Key machines take less than 3 minutes and provide 96%
of domestic keys cut in the UK.

Page 8

12.3

Over and above the 10 awards, the Milner award - made by Keighley Training
Consortium, rewards 3 outstanding engineering apprentices annually.
Outstanding Apprentice –

Jasmine Hibbert

Best Vocational Skills Development –
Best Academic Achievement –

Sam Saunders
Nathan Buckle

12.4

Keighley and Worth Valley Railway reached its 50th anniversary in the same week
as the award ceremony and received a Special Award for an Outstanding
Contribution. The railway has provided decades of benefit to Bradford District’s
Tourism draw as well as the welcome transport which was the original motivation
for continuation post Beeching.

12.5

The organisers were grateful to John Grogan MP’s office for organising coverage
on a popular Asian language cable TV Channel in the run up to the entry period.
Radio, press and hand delivery of information plus on street advertising all
contributed to the success of the event.
Full information can be found at www.keighleyairedalebusinessawards.co.uk.

13.

Keighley Community Led Local Development (CLLD) – delivery for work
assisted by European Funds.

13.1

The CLLD programme is based on four principles:
• A bottom-up approach - targeted at local areas of greatest need;
• Finding innovative ways of addressing local challenges and opportunities;
• Based on Keighley Local Development Strategies and led by the Local Action
Group (LAG);
• Bringing together different types of activity in different sectors into a
co-ordinated Strategy.

13.2

The programme is worth £4.8m.subject to the match funding being found – £2.4m is
required. The Council has pledged at least £250,000 and Business Rate Pool
funding of £250k has helped with reducing the amount of match required. However
the activity calls will still require 40% match funding.
Finding the match funding is a more difficult proposition for everyone than it was
when the process began. Public sector funding has become tighter over the last 2
years when the programme was first devised.
If there isn’t a strong response, there is the possibility of the calls, to organisations
that are interested in running parts of the programme, being offered again.

13.3

The Local Action Group nominated Airedale Enterprise Services to provide a LAG
Support Team. Bradford Council was asked to be the Accountable Body with the
Neighbourhoods Service providing the Strategic lead for the scheme.

13.4

Following 2 calls for submissions via YORTender the Local Action Group support
team are currently in the process of appraising the applications received. It is
anticipated that contracting with one or more providers will take place early in

Page 9

February 2019.
13.5

By 2020, CLLD expects to support 600 people, including 377 unemployed, 223
“economically inactive”, 200 over-50s, 200 ethnic minorities, and 118 with
disabilities including mental health issues.
It aims to help 155 people into education or training, 85 people into jobs including
self-employment, create 100 new jobs, and support 100 enterprises including 75
new ones. The Keighley Area Committee will receive a further update report in
February 2019.
The planned activities are:
European Social Fund (ESF)
















Improving low level skills amongst young people and adults in the CLLD area,
including basic skills, language and communication, personal development,
employability, and ICT and digital.
Providing pathways for integration and re-entry into employment for unemployed/
economically inactive CLLD residents, through employer engagement for a range of
activities including short work tasters, training facilities, Training equipment rental,
job clubs, work experience, job/career pathways information and awareness.
Holistic family-focused support provision addressing core /employability skills and
barriers to learning and employment.
Practical & advisory support for employers to overcome barriers to recruiting people
with disabilities.
Work buddy programme for micro businesses and unemployed residents
CLLD area wide strategies to build resilience in families and communities and
support social and community integration.
Stimulating local level collaboration amongst residents, small businesses and other
local economic bodies, to support social inclusion and environmental
improvements.
European Regional Development Fund (ERDF)
Small scale business grants /voucher scheme to support start-up, growth, and
accessing business space and equipment.
Activities to promote entrepreneurship and self-employment in the CLLD area.
Support for federation/cluster development for small businesses to collaborate for a
range of outcomes including progression and retention of skilled people within the
key sectors and businesses.
Tailored business support for start-ups and existing SMEs, including mentoring,
coaching, information, advice and guidance, business planning, and signposting
and information on skills, productivity and quality improvement support.
Support for new forms of enterprise including social economy and social
enterprises.

14.0

Advanced Manufacturing/Engineering

14.1

Airedale has a proud and active manufacturing and engineering sector with many
local companies exporting worldwide.

Page 10

14.2

Whilst some businesses manufacture complete items, many other local companies
provide the components and services that complete other manufacturer’s products.
Eg Airedale Springs and Keighley Laboratories.

14.3

Through the development of the Centre of Excellence for Advanced Manufacturing
and Engineering (AME), Keighley College has led, since January 2015, on
manufacturing/engineering education within the Bradford District. This partnership
between businesses, Keighley College, the Council and Oakbank School (now
Beckfoot Oakbank) is part of the Council-led Industrial Centres of Excellence
programme.
This approach has boosted the number of young people entering training with the
intent of building the workforce pipeline, improving productivity and securing growth
in this sector. Businesses that had looked outside the District for the training of their
apprentices have now turned to Keighley College to meet their needs.

14.4

Concerns about the age profile of managerial and technical staff in the sector and
associated risk of the potential loss of expertise at retirement, is being addressed by
boosting the profile and reputation of the sector. Manufacturing/Engineering as a
profession is now, a long way from the stereo-typical oil and overalls.

14.5

Keighley College has been rated as “Good” ” through its latest OFSTED inspection March 2018.
This year’s achievement rates suggest that it is “the most improved college in the
country.”

14.6

The manufacturing/engineering work is informed by a Board made up of local
businesses, Chaired by Tim Parkinson of Airedale Springs and including, Acorn
Stairlifts, Carnaud MetalBox, Produmax, Keighley Laboratories, Gesipa, Metalkraft,
Advanced group, Byworth Boilers, Fives Landis, the Chair of Bradford Chamber of
Commerce and representatives from The Airedale Partnership, the Council and
Keighley College.

14.7

In 2015 when the work began there were 3 apprentices, there are now 70.
In addition there are 56 Fabrication and Welding apprentices
In 2015 there were 2 in full-time training and there are now 8 studying the Level 2
Diploma in Mechanical Engineering.
There are 11 studying BTEC level 3 Dip Engineering with a further 10 on Level 4
that started Sept 2018.
27 are involved through School Links.

14.8

A Register of Interest has already been made to the LEP for further consideration
once funding becomes available to expand the provision.

Page 11

14.9

A consortium of local businesses (Keighley Training Consortium) has sponsored the
Milner Awards for the last 3 years at the Keighley and Airedale Business Awards.
This aims to further promote engineering apprenticeships which can lead to a debt
free modern profession. Last Year’s outstanding apprentice was Jasmine Hibbert.

15.

Superfast West Yorkshire and York Broadband Programme.

15.1

The objective of the programme is to deliver superfast broadband capability, greater
than 24Mbps to as much of West Yorkshire as possible.
New fibre networks are being installed by OpenReach through a second contract
administered by the West Yorkshire Combined Authority. This is funded by BDUK
(UK government) to the amount of £6.89m with a corresponding £6.89m coming
from the European Union plus £2.491m underspend from contract one. This
network development will result in 98% - 99% of West Yorkshire home and
business premises having access to at least 30mbps broadband. The current
phase is targeting many rural and more isolated sites such as Stanbury and
Oldfield. It will be completed during 2020.

15.2

A third contract of this programme is currently under consideration. It was hoped
that this would take the number of premises in West Yorkshire having superfast
broadband further towards the 100% target. However the scope of this contract is
being reconsidered as BDUK have reprioritised their funding regime.

16.0

Baildon Business Park

16.1

After 6 years work on this 8 hectare site the development was completed in
December 2018. All the units are now either occupied or under offer. Considering
the scheme was developed during the deepest recession for a generation it has
proved very successful, borne out by the fact that the majority of the units sold off
plan despite the economic conditions.

16.2

The development provides approximately 150,000 sq ft of new accommodation and
occupying companies are involved in aircraft parts engineering, aluminium products
design and manufacture, medical device manufacture and fibre spinning. Produmax
has taken 2 units and is a participant in the Advanced Manufacturing training work
referenced at 14.
Produmax’ website says:
“With help from Sharing in Growth, as well as Bradford City Council and the local
LEP, Produmax invested in a new plant at Baildon along with the latest machining
technology, and developed the skills of its team. This helped to double the return on
assets, improved productivity by almost 40% and won three new customers so
Produmax could further invest in the future including the new Produmax Plus plant
on the same Baildon site. The company has also set up links with universities,
colleges and schools and has created its own apprenticeship programme and will
shortly launch a leadership development programme” The companies ambition is to
reach £50m turnover by 2020.

Page 12

16.3

The project has recently been visited by consultants IPSOS MORI working for
DCMS who are evaluating the implementation of Superfast Broadband
infrastructure. They were particularly complementary about the approach taken on
the Baildon Business Park which retains ducting for superfast broadband within the
highway, and therefore Council control, to future proof the estate.

17.0

Business Support

17.1

Invest in Bradford
The Council’s Invest in Bradford Team provide a wide range of advice and support
to businesses, both large and small, across Keighley and Shipley. Support from
experienced business advisors includes assistance with business development
needs, accessing grants and finance, property searches, innovation and exporting
as well as additional specialist advice.

17.2

District Growth Scheme
Following the success of the City Centre Growth Scheme, the Council launched a
district wide rate relief initiative in April 2018. The District Growth Scheme offers
incentives in the form of business rates relief to companies creating new
developments, taking on vacant listed properties and bringing empty town centre
units back into economic use. The scheme recently approved assistance to
Produmax, a manufacturer of precision parts and assemblies for the aerospace
industry, based on the Sapper Jordan Rossi Park, Baildon. Support from the
scheme will enable this fast growing business to develop a new 1,700sq metre unit
allowing them to expand their operation leading to the creation of 20 new jobs.
Invest in Bradford Officers have supported the team at Produmax to access both
this funding and the LEP’s Business Growth Fund.

17.3

Support to Access Funding
The Invest in Bradford Team support businesses to access funding from local,
regional and national sources. Funding secured by companies in Keighley and
Shipley though ESIF (European Structural & Investment Funds) and LEP funded
Programmes are detailed below.

Funding Source
Ad:Venture
Digital Enterprise Programme
Grants
Resource Efficiency Fund
Grants
Access Innovation
Business Growth Programme
CBMDC - District Growth
Scheme

No. Beneficiary
Companies
Keighley
Shipley
38
56
6
1
2
5

Page 13

Total
Value of
Grants
£4,314

Job Creation
9

£22,785
2
2
5

£22,557
£145,156
£293,281

30

1

£100,000

20

18.0

Shipley HMRC Office

18.1

Preliminary discussions about the future of the building are being explored with the
owners of the site. The property is located within the proposed Shipley Local
Business Development Zone and desk top study work is proposed to be carried out
as part of this feasibility exercise to advise and assist the current owners on the
future development potential of the site

19.

Crag Road Site

19.1

A Council brownfield site that is the subject of a development partnership
established with Skipton Properties Ltd., (SPL). The site suffers from a range of
development constraints but with the assistance of grant funding secured from
Homes England (formerly the Homes & Communities Agency) SPL are currently
constructing Phase I of a planned comprehensive development scheme.
Phase I involves the delivery of a total of 85 new homes made up of 31 family
homes and 54 apartments in three blocks. Market interest in the new homes has
been encouraging with sales of 21 family homes agreed by November 2018, of
which 80% were with first time buyers. The first apartment block is due for
completion and sales launch in November 2018 with the whole phase due to be
completed by September 2019.
Encouraged by the relative success of Phase I, SPL are now progressing the
feasibility and draft design of a second phase that could deliver a further 80+ homes
on the site.

20.

New Bolton Woods (NBW), Bradford –Shipley Canal Road Corridor

20.1

The Council’s joint venture development company, Canal Road Urban Village Ltd.,
(CRUVL) that was established with private sector development partners Urbo
Regeneration Ltd., is progressing the delivery of the New Bolton Woods
regeneration scheme at the heart of the Bradford – Shipley Canal Road
Regeneration Corridor Area Action Plan, adopted in December 2017.
The NBW regeneration scheme plans to establish a new neighbourhood of up to
1000 new homes within the ‘Centre Section’ of the Canal Road Corridor and in
order for it to be a place where families will want to live the proposals include the
creation of a new Local Centre comprising a medium sized food store, other shops,
education, health, sports/leisure facilities and business accommodation within an
environment that features high quality public open space.
The comprehensive NBW regeneration scheme is made up of four main phases of
development at present as follows:

Phase 1 – completed in 2014 by CRUVL with sub-development partners Skipton Properties
Ltd., providing 50 new homes (including 20 Social housing units)..

Page 14

Phase 2 – is the proposed development of some 3,000 sq m of retail/commercial space that
will anchor the new Local Centre element of the NBW scheme. The scheme will deliver the
following:
A drive-through restaurant unit for Costa Coffee Ltd., Construction is currently
progressing on site and the new unit is programmed to open in March 2019.
(ii) A new (use Class A1) foodstore to be developed for Aldi Ltd., – terms have been
agreed on this transaction preliminary site remediation and access works are
underway in preparation for the main contract works to commence in Spring 2019 and
the new store completed in March 2020.
(iii) A third retail unit is also planned for development within this phase and CRUVL are
actively seeking a suitable operator/Lessee.
(i)

Phase 3 – the proposed development of land off Poplars Park Road currently being
constructed by CRUVL’s sub-development partners Keepmoat Homes Ltd. And which will
deliver 145 new homes. The Council’s Economic Development Service secured grant
funding of £3.6m from the West Yorkshire Combined Authority’s Local Growth Fund to
contribute to the cost of carrying out essential site remediation works to prepare the site for
development purposes and to assist the delivery of the Keepmoat scheme that is due to
be completed by 2021.
Phase 4 – is expected to follow on further land adjoining the Keepmoat Phase 3 scheme
off Poplars Park Road. This phase should deliver up to 250 further new homes within the
NBW scheme and is hoped to include the provision of a suitable access road through the
site that would facilitate the delivery of up to 700 new homes on the adjoining Bolton
Woods Quarry Site that received outline planning permission in 2018. CRUVL are
currently in detailed discussions with a potential Housebuilder for the Phase 4 scheme and
the owners of the Quarry Site to try and agree terms on delivery of the requisite access
road..
Phase 5 - the construction of a new artificial sports pitch on the King George V Playing
fields that together with the provision of significant public open space within the planned
phases of housing development and the existing green space and sports facilities running
through the NBW Masterplan Area, will establish a corridor of green infrastructure for the
use and benefit of the local communities and wider public. This scheme is delivered in
partnership with the One In A Million Free School who will ultimately lease and manage
the new sports facilities and the delivery is being led by the Council’s Sports & Leisure
Service with funding support from the ESFA and Football Foundation.
In addition to the four main phases currently being progressed by CRUVL, the delivery of
the whole NBW Masterplan scheme is a viewed as a 10 to 15 year project and as such
further phases of development will be pursued as appropriate in the future. These will
include:
 further retail, commercial and residential developments that together with the Phase 2
retail scheme will form the planned new Local Centre to serve the NBW and wider
communities,

Page 15

 provision of additional later phases of housing that could mean the ultimate delivery up
to 1,000 further new homes in total within the NBW scheme
 new health, education, improved sports facilities and quality open spaces.
21.

The Bradford Shipley Route Improvement Scheme

21.1

This is one of several Transport Fund projects currently being developed In
Bradford. The project has a £47m allocation by the Combined Authority and it is
anticipated that a preferred option will be identified by summer 2019 and project
completion by 2024 subject to necessary approvals. The objectives of the project
are to relieve congestion and improve journey times along the Canal Road / Valley
Road corridor and to deter traffic away from the Manningham Lane corridor by
making walking, cycling and public transport more attractive.

21.2

The project is currently still in its infancy however a phase 1 Consultation and
Engagement period started on 14th December 2018, closing 8th February. The
intention is to introduce this project to stakeholders and give an opportunity for
people to have their say at an early stage of the project. This activity will consist of
leaflets, officer attended exhibitions and press releases / social media. Stakeholders
will be given the opportunity to have their say via the project’s website and online
questionnaires.

21.3

The Council’s Landscape Design and Conservation Team are working with our
engineers to deliver a strategic transport link between Bradford City Centre and
Shipley. Whilst the main aim of the scheme is to improve traffic flow, the project will
include a significant element to mitigate against the negative effects of the road
scheme and promote sustainable transport.

21.4

As part of this, we are developing a landscape masterplan that will create a linear
network of green spaces that will reduce flooding ( Green Blue Infrastructure) This
will, help neutralise air pollution and enhance biodiversity in the valley. Current
aspirations include de-culverting a length of Bradford Beck to create a more natural
environment including; wetlands, meadows and riparian woodland. Public access
will be greatly enhanced to promote healthy lifestyles with a focus on cycling and
walking.

21.5

Flooding will be tackled through the creation of a network of retention ponds,
swales, raingardens and flood mitigating tree pits. These will temporarily store flood
waters reducing peak flows in Bradford Beck. Street trees, hedge, and shrub
planted immediately adjacent to the road will mitigate against air pollution and
create a healthier, more attractive environment for residents and businesses alike.

21.6

The blue green infrastructure works will be part of the wider Bradford-Shipley Route
Improvement Scheme. Blue Green Infrastructure proposals for works from 2020 are
being drawn up, with a range of options designed to complement the wider scheme.

22

Rural Economy & European Funding:

22.1

The South Pennines Leader programme is a £1.5 million European funded grants

Page 16

programme administered by Pennine Prospects. Bradford Council staff are involved
in the decision making process. The Council is the Accountable Body for the
programme. Its aim is to support the development of rural businesses and
community assets. The scheme has been fully operational since 2016. The
Programme has now reached the stage where projects are in delivery, but no new
expressions of interest can be accepted. Eligible projects must be fully approved
and contracted by February 2019 so applications need to be completed in the next
few months. All projects have to be completed by 2020.

Totals
22.2

South Pennine LEADER Funds Committed - Projects in Bradford District January 2019
Contracted
Total project
Job
Company Name
Grant Amount
costs
Creation
Fanny's Farmhouse Cheese
(Riddlesden). New dairy for
£
58,211.60
4
making goats’ cheese
Ashlar Stone (Oakworth)
New shed and stone cutting
£
48,387.37
2
machine
Wilsden Village Hall
Heating and insulation
£
42,551.20
0.23
installation
Keighley Tree Services
(Crossroads)
To create hardstanding and
£
53,463.20
2
purchase forest equipment
Linesman GPS (Haworth)
Purchase a GPS linemarking
£
6,929.66
0.7
machine and a drone
Old Post Office Café Bar
(Silsden)
Building work, flooring and
equipment for a new café
£
36,330.49
2.12
Addingham Hub
Building improvements to create
£
25,178.40
0.4
a new community facility
Keighley Trees Services
(Crossroads) Purchase
equipment to enable a new
pick-your-own logs facility with
weighbridge & log storage plus
£
59,450.32
1
handling equipment
£
755,778.1
£
330,502.24 6
12.45
Pennine Prospects has received news that it has been successful in securing
£183,000 from the Heritage Lottery Fund – Resilient Heritage Programme to work
through the organisational change required to shift the way the South Pennines are

Page 17

perceived and operate. There is an obvious economic implication in this ambition.
The grant is available for 18 months from August 2018. 2 Part time staff have
already been recruited with a third expected..
To keep up with news and developments on the rural programme please see
Pennine Prospects website; http://www.southpenninesleader.co.uk/
23.

Saltaire World Heritage Site

23.1

The current Saltaire World Heritage Site
Management Plan was adopted in December 2014. It won a Royal Town Planning
Institute award. Annual work plans have been produced by the World Heritage
Officer and monitored by the Project Board and Steering Group. The Management
Plan was last reviewed on 28th November 2017. However, the post holder moved
to another post within Bradford Council and the post has been vacant for over a
year.
A new Saltaire World Heritage Officer started in October 2018 and there are plans
to reconvene the Board and Steering Group meetings in 2019 to review the
Management Plan and priorities.

24.

Former Auction Market Bingley
This site off Keighley Rd. Bingley is the subject of a planning application submitted
in May 2018 for 104 retirement apartments. Demolition was approved for the
existing buildings. The application has not yet been determined (as at Jan 22nd.)
The site is a Brownfield site of 4.15 acres.
To the North the 67 bed Glen Nursing Home is now complete.

25.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
There are no financial issues arising from this update report.

26.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
There are no risks arising from this update report.

27.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
There are no legal issues specifically arising from this report.

28.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

28.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
There are no specific equality and diversity issues.

28.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no specific sustainability implications arising from this report.

28.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
There are no specific impacts. Page 18

28.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
The improvements to highways described will result in greater public safety whether
on foot or via vehicle.

28.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no Human Rights implications

29

TRADE UNION
There are no Trade Union implications

30

WARD IMPLICATIONS
The works described will have some focussed effects but have potential to be felt
throughout Shipley and Keighley.

31

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
There are no corporate parenting implications.

32

PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
There are no data protection or security matters arising.

33

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None

34.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Members are asked to consider the content of this report.

35.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

35.1

Airedale Masterplan

35.2

The Shipley Canal Road Corridor Area Action Plan is identified in the Council’s
Local Development LDS 2014 Scheme

36.

APPENDICES

36.1

Illustrative maps of items discussed;
Regeneration in Keighley
Regeneration in Shipley
Regeneration in Bingley

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Regeneration - Update on activity in Keighley

LocalBusi
nessDevel
op mentZones
Kei
ghl
eyZone2–RoydI
ngsar
ea

Beechcl
i
f
f
esi
t
e

Har
dI
ngsRoad

Local Business Development Zones
Keighley Zones 1 & 2

Page 21

Chesham St
r
eet
/
Dal
t
onLane

Publ
i
cSect
orHub

Cavendi
shStBui
l
di
ng

Low St
r
eetKei
ghl
ey

LocalBusi
nessDevel
op mentZones
Kei
ghl
eyZone1–Dal
t
onLanear
ea
EastPar
adeShop p i
ng
Devel
op ment
Memor
yGar
denon
Chur
chGr
eenandLow St
r
eet

.
Department of Place
8th Floor, Margaret McMillan Tower,
Bradford, BD1 1NN
------------------------------------------------------NOT TO SCALE
------------------------------------------------------Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
Bradford Metropolitan District Council
License No: 100019304
Document published 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Regeneration - Update on activity in Bingley

Page 25

.
Department of Place
8th Floor, Margaret McMillan Tower,
Bradford, BD1 1NN
------------------------------------------------------NOT TO SCALE
------------------------------------------------------Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
Bradford Metropolitan District Council
License No: 100019304
Document published 2018

Former Auction Market

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7/

Report of the Interim Strategic Director Children’s
Services to the meeting of Regeneration and Economy
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 26th
February 2019
Subject:
Get Bradford Working and Skills for Work Update

Summary statement:
This report provides an update on Get Bradford Working and Skills for Work and provides
details of achievements and future plans.

Gladys Rhodes White
Strategic Director

Portfolio: Education, Employment and Skills

Report Contact: Phil Hunter

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Children’s Services

Phone: (01274) 439575
E-mail: phil.hunter@bradford.gov.uk

Page 27

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

The implementation of Get Bradford Working (GBW), an Employment Investment
Programme for the District, was initially approved at Bradford Council’s Executive
Committee in June 2012. Further funding was also allocated to GBW in the 2013
and 2014 budgets.

1.2

Get Bradford Working draws together key initiatives which tackle the issues and
barriers facing Bradford’s residents in the labour market. GBW represents in excess
of £16.5 million of investment, by Bradford Council and partners including:
Jobcentre Plus; Incommunities; and Leeds City Region. The programme provide
employment opportunities by creating: jobs; apprenticeship places; a
transformational curriculum for 14-19 year olds; and a range of support measures
both for employers and those residents furthest from the labour market. These
measures endorse the Council’s commitment and contribution to developing better
skills, more good jobs and a growing economy as detailed in the Council Plan and
“Pioneering, Confident and Connected” (the District’s Economic Strategy), as well
as building on Bradford’s role as a partner within the Leeds City Region.

1.3

To date the range of Get Bradford Working programmes have supported 3,424
individuals into employment.

1.4

The Get Bradford Working programme has delivered 7 strands:
• SkillsHouse
• The Employment Opportunities Fund (EOF)
• Industrial Centres of Excellence
• The Advanced Skills Fund
• Routes into Work
• The Apprenticeship Training Agency & Apprenticeship Hub
• Step up to Business.

1.5

The Employment Opportunities Fund is now wholly delivered through the European
Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF) funded STEP programme whereas although
SkillsHouse also attracts significant funding from STEP it continues to operate as a
discrete brand. The Industrial Centres of Excellence programme is the other strand
that remains active.

1.6

This report provides an update on Get Bradford Working, with particular reference
to STEP and ICE developments and provides details of the achievements realised
to date and future plans.

2.

BACKGROUND

This section provides further detail on SkillsHouse, the Employment Opportunities
Fund (EOF) and the Industrial Centres of Excellence (ICE) as the continuing
strands of GBW including the sustainability and cost of outcomes. Appendix 1 gives
details on previous strands delivered under GBW that have now ceased. Appendix
2 sets out the demographic headlines for participants on all GBW activity to date.
SkillsHouse

Page 28

2.1.1 Through the Broadway development and the continued regeneration of the City
Centre, significant employment opportunities for local people continue to be
generated. In order to maximise these opportunities, SkillsHouse was initially
established to support retail, hospitality and visitor economy businesses and to help
local people find jobs.
2.1.2 SkillsHouse was launched on 1st June 2015. The priority is to engage with
employers who have vacancies and support unemployed people in the district to
compete for these vacancies, by upskilling them and providing them with
qualifications in Retail, Hospitality and the World Host Principles of Customer
Service. Individuals undertaking pre-employment training with SkillsHouse are also
guaranteed an interview and additional support in order to secure employment in
the district.
2.1.3 Though the core team members who work within SkillsHouse are Bradford Council
staff, assessments, support and training are delivered in partnership with a range of
providers across the District, including Jobcentre Plus, Aspire-igen, Bradford
College, Shipley College, Keighley College and Skills for Work.
2.1.4 SkillsHouse essentially operates as a ‘finishing school’, upskilling individuals to
ensure they are ready to meet the specific needs of employers. As such the model
is reliant on stakeholders referring suitable clients onto the Assessment days.
SkillsHouse has run assessment days in partnership with 70 organisations.
2.1.5 Since launching, SkillsHouse has supported 1,205 unemployed individuals into
work in over 110 businesses, and as a result of the adoption of the World Host
principles into the programme and the number of people that have completed this
we have achieved World Host status for the City Centre (WorldHost recognition can
be achieved by a business or destination when 50% of the employees in customer
facing roles have completed WorldHost Training).
2.1.6 SkillsHouse has also expanded to incorporate delivery in the Health and Social
Care sector and is a key delivery partner in the One Workforce programme.
SkillsHouse will lead on the community recruitment element of the programme. This
will engage economically inactive and unemployed residents at a community level
to support them to meet recruitment needs in the sector.
2.1.7 Further development plans are being considered with a view SkillsHouse becoming
the key agent facilitating ‘hiring local’ and exploring co-location of staff from other
related services – such as DWP and National Careers Service.
2.1.8 SkillsHouse continues to diversify its range of activity and has been involved with
specific project work supporting refugees into employment and Council staff at risk
of redundancy. SkillsHouse is currently also supporting the Police, Ambulance
Service and Armed Forces with their recruitment campaigns.
2.1.9 Under the STEP contract, a job through SkillsHouse equates to £820 per successful
outcome, of which just under 60% have been sustained for six months.

Page 29

The Employment Opportunities Fund
2.2.1 The Employment Opportunities Fund (EOF) is a partnership between CBMDC,
Incommunities, Jobcentre Plus (JCP) and associated partners with funding from
CBMDC, Incommunities, JCP and Leeds City Region as well as now the ESIF
funding that has been secured.
2.2.2 The fund specifically targets Bradford residents who are unemployed, claiming
active benefits and have been out of work for at least six months. The main aim of
the fund is to provide a bridge into work for these individuals and to support them
towards sustainable employment.
2.2.3 Since it commenced in December 2012, the EOF has supported 1,156 individuals
into employment. The roles are within a range of sectors including horticulture,
catering, ICT, community development and childcare.
2.2.4 An external evaluation of the programme was undertaken in 2015. The EOF
approach is relatively expensive (the rate averages £3,900 per job) this reflects the
barriers faced by its client group. The 2015 research actually identified that £12.8m
of social value had been achieved from a £6.48m (i.e. value of the achievements
were effectively twice the value of the investment) based on the job outputs and
training achievements at that time.
2.2.5 The EOF model has been a significant success. At present just over 70% of starters
on the programme have sustained employment on the programme for six months.
This is significantly higher than the national DWP Work Programme – the
Government has suspended Work Programme statistics but to December 2017
31.4% of participants on the Work Programme had spent six months in work.
Industrial Centres of Excellence (ICE)
2.3.1 The ICE are innovative education-industry partnerships that have been locally
developed and it is an established model that is clearly demonstrating success. At
its heart an ICE is a forum for regular discussions and relations between employers
and educators to ensure that education programmes, capital, and learning
experiences remain current and in-step with employer demand.
2.3.2 ICE are discrete Centres within existing schools or colleges. The Centres have their
own management Board that are industry-led, which has delegated responsibility
for curriculum and other matters pertaining to the Centre.
2.3.3 The ICE enable partners to better identify demand for particular occupations and
skills, ensuring that the curriculum, equipment and learning pathways that students
experience remain relevant, therefore addressing current and future skills gaps in
the sector specialism of that ICE.
2.3.4 Presently there are over 300 business engaged with ICE, of which 28 sit on one of
the existing five ICE Boards. Eighteen of our secondary schools, the three FE
Colleges based in the District, and the University of Bradford are also all key
partners.
2.3.4 There are currently five ICE operating:

Page 30

Centre of Excellence for Business;
Centre of Excellence for Computing, Science and Environmental Technologies;
Centre of Excellence for the Built Environment;
Centre of Excellence for Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering; and
Centre of Excellence for Health and Social Care.
2.3.5 Over the past 12 months we have conducted a review of the ICE programme. This
has renewed partners’ commitment to the approach and in addition to Council
investment we have secured financial investment from employers (specifically
Arnold Laver and NG Bailey) and staffing resource from the three FE Colleges.
2.3.6 The ICE Partnership will now work to establish nine Industrial Centres of Excellence
(ICE) to ensure that every young person will have the opportunity to access a high
quality career and learning pathway from the age of 14. The nine ICEs will provide a
comprehensive set of career and learning pathways that lead ultimately into work
covering all sectors of the economy and most occupational areas.
2.3.7 Specifically the four new ICEs will cover:
• Creative, Digital and Arts
• Hospitality and Tourism
• Public Service and Law
• Transport and Logistics
The Creative, Digital and Arts ICE will launch this September (2019) with the further
three ICEs to open in 2020/21 academic year.
2.3.8 This year we are on target to engage with careers and technical education 15,000
young people with the ICE programme and 3,078 on career themed ICE activity.
The ESIF STEP programme
2.4.1 The Council leads a partnership delivering an ESIF Local Flexibilities for the
Unemployed Contract, this secures matched funding therefore maximising the
remainder of the partner funding that had been allocated for SkillsHouse and the
Employment Opportunities Fund within Get Bradford Working.
2.4.2 This contract is called Skills Training and Employment Pathways (STEP). STEP is
voluntary for participants and delivers a package of tailored support to address
worklessness of unemployed disadvantaged individuals.
2.4.3 The provision aims to engage with the individual, identify and address barriers to
work, using a range of specialist support/provision to move participants into
sustained work at the earliest opportunity.
2.4.4 The STEP programme operates across Bradford (72% of delivery) and Leeds (this
element is subcontracted to Leeds City Council). STEP is worth £9.8million across
the two areas (including match).
2.4.5 In addition to the SkillsHouse and EOF elements, the programmes incorporates
specialist support services for the following groups:
• Disabilities and Mental Ill-Health

Page 31

•
•
•

BAME and ESOL
Drug and Alcohol Dependency
Over 50s

2.4.6 In total the STEP programme will support:
• Over 5,000 individuals with job search and employability;
• Over 1,500 individuals into employment; and
• Over 700 individuals will sustain employment at 6 months.
2.4.7 Recruitment has been particularly successful with certain demographics.
Enrolments from participants over 50 years of age, ethnic minority backgrounds
(and in particular females from these backgrounds) and long-term unemployed
(especially males) have all exceeded the original profiles for these groups.
2.4.8 STEP is a three year contract that will run until December 2019.
3

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

Officers continue work with Leeds City Region and West Yorkshire Combined
Authority colleagues to ensure we can benefit from and secure European and other
funding streams as and when these may become available, and to use the learning
from Get Bradford Working to inform future programme design and delivery in
Bradford.

3.2

The successor programme to STEP has been advertised for tender. Bradford has
again partnered with Leeds City Council to submit a bid. This tender closed on 29th
January, so the outcome is not yet known.

3.3

The Council has also partnered on the Youth Employment Hub ESIF contract that
WYCA successfully bid for. CBMDC will lead on delivery of the contract in Bradford.
This programme focusses on supporting 19-24 year olds into employment and the
promotion of Apprenticeships to young people and businesses.

3.4

The Local Government Association has previously promoted GBW as a positive
example of local leadership and programme design in employment and skills and
features a case study on their website.

3.5

The Council is currently consulting on a Skills Plan for the District, “People Skills
Prosperity.” The Plan seeks to create the local skills condition and interventions to
deliver certain key targets from the Economic Strategy, “Pioneering, Confident and
Connected”, specifically by 2030 we will achieve:
• £4bn growth;
• 20,000 more residents into work; and
• 48,000 residents up-skilled to Level 3.
The Plan builds on extensive consultations with partners from across the District
and a number of the proposed Priority Actions have been informed and build on
success programmes such as GBW and in particular the ICE and SkillsHouse
approaches. These Actions have been developed to continue the progress GBW
and other programmes have made in three key areas:
• Building Skills Employers Seek;

Page 32

•
•

Improving Job Quality; and
Connecting our Communities to Good Jobs and Careers.

The consultation draft of the Plan is included at Appendix 3.
4

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
As is set out above, GBW secured funding from reserves which has enabled us to
secure partner contributions, as well as Leeds City Region, DWP and ESIF funding.

5

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
Risks associated with this report are primarily reputational should programmes be
unsuccessful. This risk will be mitigated by stringent contract monitoring
procedures, undertaken by the Education, Employment and Skills Team.

6

LEGAL APPRAISAL
No legal issues.

7

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
None

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
None

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
None

7.6

TRADE UNION
None

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
There are no Ward or area implications, Get Bradford Working and STEP were
designed to be District wide programmes.

7.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
None

7.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
None

7.10

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None

Page 33

8.

OPTIONS
None

9.

RECOMMENDATIONS
•
•
•

10.

That the Committee note the content of this report and welcome the continued
success of Get Bradford Working in providing access to employment opportunities
for those living within Bradford and the District.
That the Committee comment on the work of the partnership in delivering GBW.
That the members of the Committee promote GBW and STEP within their networks.
APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Previous GBW strands
Appendix 2: Get Bradford Working Demographic Data
Appendix 3: Skills Plan draft for consultation

11.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
DWP Work Programme statistics

Page 34

Appendix 1 – Previous Get Bradford Working strands
Routes into Work
Routes into Work (RIW) was a commissioned fund that sought to meet the gaps in the
Employment and Skills provision in the District that were identified in the Employment and
Skills Strategy and offer additionality to National and Regional Programmes. RIW
contracts targeted those furthest away from the labour market such as individuals with a
disability, mental ill-health and drug and alcohol dependency.
In total 509 individuals were supported into employment through RIW programmes.
Bradford Apprenticeship Training Agency (ATA) & Apprenticeship Hub
As a response to the allocation of £4.6 million funding awarded to the Leeds City Region
(LCR) as part of the Cities Deal “Skills Ask”, the Department of Business Innovation and
Skills (BIS) approved the proposal to establish an ATA and Apprenticeship Hub within
Bradford. The funding allocated to Bradford was £958,128.
The Apprenticeship Training Agency acts as a recruitment agency and seeks out
organisations to employ apprentices on an agency basis, thereby helping them to
minimise the risk associated with employing staff more permanently. The model provides
the opportunity to grow apprenticeships in businesses to help develop their workforce and
also to reduce youth unemployment at a faster pace than planned.
The main aim of the Apprenticeship Hub is to raise the profile of apprenticeships and
increase take up of Apprenticeship provision across the District.
The original City Deal contract ended on 31st March 2016, at which time the Hub and ATA
had supported 554 young people to commence apprenticeship within SMEs. The
successor contract to the Hub was let to Interserve and is due to finish in March 2018,
officers are working within the WYCA framework to influence the next iteration of this
provision to ensure it better meets Bradford’s needs.
Advanced Skills Fund
The Advanced Skills Fund provided support to businesses in key growth sectors to enable
them to recruit skilled staff. It works to strengthen Bradford’s economy by providing the
advanced skills Bradford’s businesses need, opening up employment opportunities for
Bradford’s residents.
A case study is Borg Warner; a Bradford based engineering company who were
successful in securing a multi-million pound contract with Jaguar-Land Rover to
manufacture turbo chargers for their new engines. Borg Warner made a commitment to
ensure that this contract secures 88 jobs for Bradford residents when accessing support
from the Advanced Skills Fund to expand and upskill their workforce. In addition to the 88
jobs secured, 239 people have been up-skilled.
The legacy is that two of the ICEs Centre of Excellence for Business and the Centre of
Excellence for Environmental Technologies are engaged in developing higher education
provision, higher level Apprenticeship and other advanced pathways using links with some
of the lead partners from the Advanced Skills the programme.

Page 35

Step up to Business
The Step up to Business project engaged with 16-24 year olds who were working in the
shadow economy, its aim was to support them to establish legitimate business enterprises.
The programme commenced in November 2013 and ended in March 2015. The project
outcomes are provided below.
Project Outcomes: Supporting Bradford’s Young Entrepreneurs
• 23 young entrepreneurs progressed in their business activities;
• 50 young people attended ‘how to start your own business’ workshops
• 18 young people received training on presentation skills
• 13 young people won awards for their ideas or business activity
Project Outcomes: Building Capacity across Bradford’s Youth Professionals
• 101 youth practitioners (from 14 different organisations) received training in
supporting young people in basic business ‘start up’.

Page 36

Appendix 2: Get Bradford Working Demographic Data
GENDER
Male
Female
Total

Number
1756
1668
3,424

%age
51.30%
48.70%
100%

ETHNICITY
White British
Mixed
Indian
Pakistani
Bangladeshi
White Other
Black
Black Other
Asian Other
Not Provided
Total

Number
2085
99
62
829
48
120
68
14
34
65
3,424

%age
60.90%
2.90%
1.80%
24.20%
1.40%
3.50%
2.00%
0.40%
1.00%
1.90%
100%

DISABILITY
No Disability
Multiple Disabilities
Physical Disability
Mental Ill Health
Learning Difficulty
Unspecified Disability
Not Provided
Total

Number
3082
10
92
89
51
55
45
3,424

%age
90.00%
0.30%
2.70%
2.60%
1.50%
1.60%
1.30%
100%

CONSTITUENCY
Bradford East
Bradford South
Bradford West
Keighley
Shipley
Not Known
Total

Number
805
579
897
414
452
277
3,424

%age
23.50%
16.90%
26.20%
12.10%
13.20%
8.10%
100%

Page 37

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

CONSULTATION DRAFT
Bradford’s Workforce
Development Plan Page 38

CONTENTS
Foreword

3

Executive Summary

4

Vision

7

Part One: A Pioneering, Confident and
Connected District

8

1. Introduction

8

2. Employment, Skills and Bradford

9

Part Two: Our Goals and Plan

23

1. Building Skills Employers Seek

24

2. Improving Job Quality

37

3. Connecting our Communities to
Good Jobs and Careers

41

The wording in this publication can be made available
in other formats such as large print or Braille. Please
telephone 01274 436082.

Page 39
2

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

FOREWORD

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Our Education Covenant recognises
that the success of this vision will not
only require sustained commitment
from Bradford Council, but on-going
collaboration with our community partners
- educators, voluntary and community
partners, businesses, and government.
On behalf of Bradford Council I am
pleased to present People, Skills
and Prosperity, the first workforce
development plan for Bradford. This
plan builds on Bradford’s bold economic
growth strategy Pioneering, Confident and
Connected, that provides the vision for a
stronger more inclusive economic future
for the District.
Our vision is to realise Bradford’s growth
potential through a highly skilled and
productive workforce. It is imperative
that skills are used effectively to meet the
increasingly complex needs of industry,
and individuals are able to maintain stable
employment, earn a family supporting
wage, and fulfil their potential.

I am keen for Bradford Council to take
a leading role in delivering this plan and
eager for us to work across partners
to create the new approach for skills
development that we envisage. The
change we seek will not come quickly or
easily, but the payoff will be enormous: a
much more competitive position for our
local businesses and a better quality of life
for our local people.
We’re keen to get feedback on this
plan and have asked twelve questions
on which we’d particularly like to hear
your views. These are at the end of the
plan. You can respond to us be emailing
EducationCovenant@bradford.gov.uk
We look forward to hearing from you.

If we are to strive for innovation, maximise
our productivity, and secure good paying
jobs we need a full system change. A
shift towards an industry-driven career
pathways approach, underpinned by
strong industry-education partnerships
to ensure training is directly linked to
employers’ talent needs, and crucially
ensuring individuals, businesses, and
industries alike are using those skills to
their full potential.

Councillor
Imran Khan
Portfolio
Holder for
Education,
Employment
and Skills

Page 40
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
OVERVIEW
This plan was born of six months of
intensive discussions, with input from
colleagues in business, the education and
training sector, voluntary and community
sector, Local Enterprise Partnership
and members of the public. These
discussions were invaluable in shaping
the development of the plan and have
led to the key recommendations for
refocusing public investments to transform
Bradford’s workforce development
system.
We aspire to build a District in which our
education and training systems support
economic growth and mobility for workers
and help business find and utilise the
talent they need to thrive. Through the
development of this Plan we asked some
essential questions: are we pursuing the
right goals? And are we investing in the
right way?

It is time to take a bold step and move
away from a strategy of simple job
placement to one that adds value. To a
strategy that builds the skills that advance
careers and earning potential, develops
a highly skilled and adaptable workforce
meeting industry needs, and skills are
used effectively in the workplace.
To make this step change we have to take
a broader view on workforce development
to cover:
p	Providing careers and technical
knowledge and skills in education;
p	Matching education and training to
the needs of industry, individuals and
communities;
p	Using knowledge and skills effectively
at work; and
p	Further developing knowledge and
skills in the workplace.

The overall conclusion we drew was
that the workforce development system
requires a root and branch change to
the way it works. The District has made
substantial progress over the last 5
years working in partnership supporting
jobseekers into sustainable work and
building credible partnerships with
employers influencing education and
training. Across the District, there are a
range of promising initiatives by partners
helping to address deeper challenges
around employer engagement, skills
development, and community prosperity.

Page 41
4

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

It is important that we move away from
our current diverse set of workforce
programmes and break established
practice and work together as a true
system. As jobseekers, workers,
employers, contractors, funders, and
service providers many of us have
struggled with the complex landscape
and disconnection between differing
agencies and programmes. To truly move
forward and achieve the objectives noted
above, we must develop common goals,
communication tools, and information
sharing systems. And we must better
connect our workforce system to our
District’s economic development activities,
so that all our communities can benefit
from growth and opportunity.

A PIONEERING,CONFIDENT AND
A Pioneering, Confident and Connected
CONNECTED DISTRICT
District

Bradford is a district of opportunity with
increasing employment rates and a
distinctive economic growth. However the
data indicates that the benefit is not being
felt by all communities or residents. Age,
gender, ethnicity and qualification levels
are all key factors in accessing the labour
market and in the type of work that people
secure.
At the same time many of the employers
in the district experience difficult recruiting
to their vacancies and have persistent
skills gaps. There is a clear imperative
to connect those communities that are

under-represented in the workforce with
opportunities to work.
A key element in being able to resolve
these twin areas for action is the suitability
of the employment and skills system. We
have one of the most centralised systems
in the world and this does not fully meet
or reflect local needs. The system itself
is fragmented and creates confusion for
individual users and employers leading
to unsatisfactory experiences and failing
to support young people, jobseekers
or businesses with vacancies. We
need interventions that bring a more
co-ordinated, coherent, user-friendly
approach to overcome the inherent
difficulties of the national system. In doing
so, this will also prepare stakeholders
locally for future progress with the
devolution agenda.

Page 42
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

5

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

OUR PLAN
Our priority actions have been developed
on this basis, and greater coordination
to improve the user experience and
maximise outcomes is a key theme.
These actions are built on recent
successes within the District and
continue the strong progress made with
the development of a career pathways
approach in Bradford to support our
young people and adults into secure and
rewarding work that will lift families from all
communities out of poverty, driving social
mobility. The involvement with employers
is at the heart of this approach to ensure
the have a workforce with the right skills to
drive productivity and grow their business
and enable the local economy to thrive.

The 14 priority actions address
three key areas:
1. Building skills employers seek
2. Improving Job Quality
3.	Connecting our Communities to
Good Jobs and Careers
The impact of delivering these actions will
be transformational for the District and will:
p	Support career advancement and
income mobility by helping young
people, jobseekers and those in work
develop high-demand skills;
p	Ensure businesses in Bradford can find
the talent they need within the District;
p	Improve the quality of low-wage jobs
to benefit both workers and their
employers;
p	Support more of our vulnerable
jobseekers and long-term workless into
work;
p	Support businesses to develop high
performing workforces; and
p	Function as a coherent system that
rewards job quality instead of the
quantity of placements by using
system-wide outcome data.
The Council acknowledges in the
Economic Strategy that it cannot deliver
these ambitions alone. This Plan sets
out how partners can and will come
together to ensure our businesses and
all our residents have the skills and
connections to capitalise on wide range of
opportunities and assets within Bradford.

Page 43
6

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

VISION
Pioneering, Confident and Connected
set out our bold ambition to be the
UK’s fastest growing economy over the
coming decade. This growth must be
sustainable and inclusive, and will be
enabled by our key strategic assets:
PEOPLE – our young, diverse and
growing population;
BUSINESS – our strong and
productive business base;
PLACE – our diverse places and
communities.
One year on from the launch of the
Strategy we have already made
considerable progress. Bradford
undoubtedly offers our residents
economic, social and cultural
opportunities that enable them to make
the most of their talents and realise their

ambitions.
The Council and its partners are
determined that all residents of the
District benefit from the
opportunities and successes we have
within Bradford and that are also across
the wider Leeds City Region. We are
equally determined that out employers
and businesses can access the skills
they need to succeed and compete
nationally and internationally.
Working together to improve diversity
in the workforce will bring real social
and community benefits, but there is an
equally persuasive economic case, with
the links between workforce diversity
and increased productivity being well
established and widely understood.
Our vision therefore is simple, all our
residents and communities will have the
skills and connections to benefit from
the range of opportunities available in
the District and drive further economic
growth.

Page 44
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

7

1

PART ONE:

A Pioneering, Confident and
Connected District
Raise GVA by

£4bn
20,000

more people into
work

48,000

more people with NVQ3
level skills

INTRODUCTION
Introduction
Bradford has a proud history of
industrial, social and economic success.
Our people, our places, our unique
countryside, our history and our talent are
coming together – connecting us across
the UK and around the world to new
opportunities. We know that we can build
a great future for our people by delivering
economic growth that leaves no one
behind. The District’s Economic Strategy,
“Pioneering, Confident and Connected”
set out our plans to do that by increasing
the number of productive businesses, and
supporting young and enterprising people
to innovate, invest and build fulfilling lives
in the district.
We are proud of the great work that we

have already done to deliver Pioneering,
Confident and Connected. As a
partnership we are taking decisive action
to realise the ambitions of this strategy
leading and driving rapid and lasting
change. At the very heart of the strategy
is our target to be better than the UK
averages for productivity, jobs, earnings
and skills.
This will mean by 2030 we will have at
least 20,000 more people into work, will
have secured 48,000 more local people a
Level 3 qualification, and will have raised
GVA by £4billion in the local economy.
Every child, young person and adult
needs to be in a position to contribute to
and benefit from this growth. At the same
time, ensuring that our businesses have

Page 45
8

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

a pipeline than can deliver a workforce
with the skills they need, when they need
them is critical if we are to achieve these
ambitions. People, Skills, Prosperity sets
out how we will capitalise on our current
strengths and successes to implement
approaches that meet the common goals
of our partners and raise up all of our
communities.

RESIDENTS IN EMPLOYMENT
Bradford has some substantial labour
market challenges in ensuring all our
communities and residents are accessing
work. Employment continues to increase
in the District, neighbouring Local
Authorities and across Leeds City Region
as a whole, although our employment
rate (the proportion of people of working
age in employment) has remained lower
in Bradford than in the wider WYCA and
LCR areas.

EMPLOYMENT, SKILLS AND
BRADFORD
Prosperity is available as a separate
Technical Annex. This section draws
out key contextual issues relating to our
priorities, informed by this primary and
secondary research and the national
policy context.

Employment Rate compared to local areas

Employment rate aged 16–64

BRADFORD

LEEDS CITY REGION

Source: Annual Population Survey; NOMIS
WEST YORKSHIRE

70

65

2012

2014

2016

2018

Page 46
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

9

Percentage employment growth by sector, 2011-17
BRADFORD

LEEDS CITY REGION

WEST YORKSHIRE

Mining, quarrying and utilities (B, D & E)
Manufacturing (C)
Construction (F)
Motor trades (Part G)
Wholesale (Part G)
Retail (Part G)
Transport and storage, including postal (H)
Accommodation and food services (I)
Information and communication (J)
Financial and insurance (K)
Property (L)
Professional, scientific and technical (M)
Business administration and support services (N)
Public administration and defence (O)
Education (P)
Health (Q)

400

Arts, entertainment, recreation and other services (R, T, S & U)

–20.0%

Bradford is a distinct area with strong
growth in many areas. Notable features of
employment growth in Bradford relative to
the WYCA and LCR include:
p	Manufacturing employment has grown
faster than in WYCA or LCR
p	Employment in accommodation and
food services has grown substantially
in common with WYCA and LCR
p	Bradford has experienced substantial
growth in employment in information

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

20.0%

and communication services similar to
WYCA and stronger than LCR
p	Finance and insurance employment
grew in Bradford but fallen in WYCA
and LCR
p	Bradford has seen much lower
employment growth than WYCA
and LCR in the related sectors of
professional, scientific and technical
services, and business administration
and support services

Page 47
10

0.0%

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

The occupational categories where
employment has grown most in Bradford
are: business and public service associate
professionals, administrative occupations
and transport and mobile machine drivers

and operatives. Bradford however has
seen little overall change in ‘high level’
managerial or professional employment.
As is indicated below:

Change in employment by occupation in Bradford, 2012-13 to 2017-18

Source: Annual Population Survey 2012-13, 2017-18

Corporate managers and directors
Office managers and proprietors
Science, research, engineering and technology professionals
Health professionals
Teaching and educational professionals
Business, media and public service professionals
Science, engineering and technology associate professionals
Health and social care associate professionals
Protective service occupations
Culture, media and sports occupations
Business and public service associate professionals
Administrative occupations
Secretarial and related occupations
Skilled agricultural and related trades
Skilled metal, electrical and electronic trades
Skilled construction and building trades
Textiles, printing and other skilled trades
Caring personal service occupations
Leisure, travel and related personal service occupations
Sales occupations
Customer service occupations
Process, plant and machine operatives
Transport and mobile machine drivers and operatives
Elementary trades and related occupations
Elementary administration and service occupations

–2,500

0

2,500

5,000

Page 48
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

11

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Just over two thirds (68%) of the working
age population resident in Bradford
were in employment in the year to June

2018. Unemployment is low, but taken
with economic inactivity it is unequally
distributed in Bradford:

Economic activity of Bradford’s working age residents
In employment

Unemployment

Wants a job

Does not want a job

100%

75%

50%

25%

0%

All

Female

Male

Young people aged 16-19 and people of
retirement age, 65 and over have very
high rates of inactivity. The former reflects
continued participation in education whilst
the latter reflects retirement. Compared to
men, women are much more likely to be
economically inactive when they are aged
25-49 which is likely to be due to raising
families.
The data also shows clearly that age is a
significant factor for economic activity.:

Page 49
12

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

Economic Inactivity Rates by Age, Bradford residents
Men

100%

Women

75%

50%

25%

0%

Aged
16–19

Aged
20–24

Aged
25–34

There is also a strong ethnic dimension
to inactivity rates amongst women in
Bradford. Economic inactivity rates have
largely remained constant in recent years.

Aged
35–49

Aged
50–64

Aged
65+

In contrast, white women have much
lower economic inactivity rates and these
have been falling in recent years:

Economic Inactivity Rates of Women in Bradford by Ethnicity
ALL WOMEN

WHITE WOMEN

BAME WOMEN

PAKISTANI/BANGLADESHI WOMEN

60.0%

40.0%

20.0%

0.0%
2014

2016

2018

Page 50
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

13

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

However it is also worth noting that BAME
men similarly underperform compared to
white men. In 2018 the employment rate
of BAME men declined and the increase
in white women’s employment rate means
that white people have higher employment
rates than BAME residents irrespective of
gender.

Employment Rates by Gender and Ethnicity
WHITE: MALE

WHITE: FEMALE

BAME: MALE

BAME: FEMALE

80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%

2013

2014

2015

2016

However these are not the only
determinants and skills levels are a crucial
factor not only in securing employment but
also for in-work progression.
Although school performance is
improving, education outcomes still hold
many young people and adults back from
fulfilling their potential especially amongst

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

2018

disadvantaged communities. Interesting
patterns emerge when considering job
starts by qualifications.
People holding Level 4 qualifications
dominate those starting professional
and managerial jobs. For associate
professional jobs again people with Level
4 qualifications are most frequently hired,

Page 51
14

2017

but also those with Level 3 qualifications
are substantially more likely to be hired
than those holding other qualification
levels

people to progress into and then in-work
to raise families from all communities out
of poverty.

People starting jobs as process, plant and
machine operatives have a wide range
of different qualifications. These are the
only sort of jobs where those with no or
low-level qualifications (below Level 2)
appear able to compete effectively with
those holding higher levels of qualification.
Finally, for elementary occupations those
holding Level 2 qualifications are most
frequently hired.
As such many residents do not benefit
from the opportunities that are available
in the District. Additionally there has been
acceleration in the growth of low pay an
insecure employment. Too many residents
are in, or moving in and out of, low-paid,
insecure employment, with few chances to
progress into better-paid and more stable
jobs. A consequence of low pay is that
now two-thirds (67 per cent) of children
nationally who are growing up in poverty
live in a family where at least one person
works. For many who are employed, work
does not pay enough to lift them out of
poverty. We need to ensure that local
provision delivers the skills to enable

Unmet employer demand
Whilst on the one hand we have
communities that are underrepresented in the labour market,
equally we have employers struggling
to meet their workforce needs.
The 2017 Employer Skills Survey
(ESS) provides information on
vacancy levels and investment in
training. Nationally (England) and
regionally, there was no change in the
number of employers with vacancies
in 2017 compared to 2015: in England
20 per cent of establishments had at
least one current vacancy at the time
of ESS 2017 fieldwork – this compares
to 18 per cent in Y&H. Leeds City
Region and Bradford both recorded an
increase in vacancies – LCR had an
increase to 22 per cent in 2017 from
19 per cent in 2015 while Bradford
recorded an increase from 19 per cent
in 2015 to 23 per cent in 2017. There
were 6,100 vacancies in Bradford in
2017.

Page 52
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

15

Organisations with any vacancies
2015

25%
20%

23%

22%
20%

20%
18%

18%

19%

2017

19%

15%
10%
5%
0%

England

Yorks &
Humber

Leeds
City Region

Hard to fill and skill-shortage vacancies
are a growing consideration for Bradford
employers in filling their vacancies as,
in Bradford there was an increase from
seven per cent in 2015 to 10 per cent in
2017 in establishments with a hard to fill

Bradford

vacancy. Similarly there was an increase
from five per cent to eight per cent in skill
shortage vacancies. In volume terms,
there were nearly 2,000 reported skillshortage vacancies in Bradford.

Businesses that have a hard to fill vacancy

2015

12%

10%

10%
8%

2017

8%

8%

8%
7%

7%

8%
7%

6%
4%
2%
0%

England

Yorks &
Humber

Leeds
City Region

Page 53
16

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

Bradford

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

The Priority Actions in this Plan consider
how to deliver these considerations
balancing employer workforce demand,
delivery of the skills to boost productivity
and engaging all of our communities
equitably with the Labour Market.

TRAVEL
TO WORK
Travel
to Work.
These Priority Actions and this Plan
naturally has a clear focus on Bradford.
Our partnerships are based upon the
District, its employers, educators, young
people and adults. Bradford is where we
will collaborate to influence outcomes
and where we will make the biggest
contribution to achieving our targets.
However Bradford is part of a wider West
Yorkshire labour market as such we need
to be mindful of our connections into
wider local labour markets to ensure our

residents can access opportunities across
the Leeds City Region. Bradford is one
of the local areas where the growth in the
number of residents in work is greater
than the growth in the number of workers
in Bradford. Hence, Bradford residents are
becoming more successful at find work
outside of the local authority.
Data from the 2011 Census showed that
70% of employed Bradford residents
work in Bradford and 30% outside of the
District, whilst 72% of Bradford’s workers
live here with 28% travelling into Bradford.
The table below shows the principle
sources of workers and destinations for
employed residents in Bradford. The
most significant commuting flows are with
Leeds where 15% of Bradford’s employed
residents work and which supplies 9% of
all workers in Bradford.

Origins and destinations for Bradford’s workers and employed residents (2011 census)
Where Bradford’s
residents work

Where Bradford’s
workers live

Bradford

70.2%

72.0%

Leeds

14.9%

9.4%

Calderdale

3.3%

4.5%

Kirklees

2.7%

4.9%

Craven

2.3%

2.2%

Wakefield

1.3%

1.0%

Harrogate

0.8%

0.7%

Other

4.5%

5.2%

There are also some
differences between the
profiles of Bradford’s
employed residents and
workers. By sector the most
notable difference is that for
public services the number of
workers in Bradford exceeds
that of employed residents
so this is the sector of the
economy where commuting
plays the largest role in
meeting local labour demand.

Page 54
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

17

Bradford’s Employed Residents and Workers by Sector, 2017-18
WORKPLACE

RESIDENTS

A Agriculture and fishing
B, D, E Energy and water
C Manufacturing
F Construction
G, I Distribution, hotels and restaurants
H, J Transport and communication
K–N Banking finance and insurance etc.
O–Q Public admin education and health
R–U Other services)

0

20,000

Towards a more coherent
skills system
A significant contributing factor to the
inequalities in the Labour Market and the
difficulties businesses experience with
training and recruitment is the current
configuration of the employment and skills
system.
The overall employment and skills
landscape is characterised by complexity
and reform. For example, recent LGA
research found that across the wider
economic development landscape there
are at least 70 different funding streams,
managed by 22 delivery agencies or
government departments. As shown in the
data above this investment, is not meeting
local need, address economic and social
challenges, or make a decisive impact on
outcomes for people or place.

Page 55
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

60,000

significantly it leads to confusion for
individual users of the system and
employers. Employment and skills has
undergone continual change over many
years with ever changing funding bodies,
ministers and reforms. Commissioning
and delivery remain highly complex – with
different the departments and agencies
involved funding provision according
to different eligibility criteria, rewarding
different outcomes and delivering across
differing geographical areas.

This is clearly inefficient but just as

18

40,000

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

However this competing provision often
ends up targeting the same customers
and populations, with the result being
only partial achievement of strategic goals
and as is shown in the data above this
investment, is not meeting local need,
address economic and social challenges,
or make a decisive enough impact on
outcomes for people or place.

Company, National Collaborative
Outreach Programme, Job Centre Plus
and the Education and Skills Funding
Agency deliver initiatives for different age
ranges and groups. Within this framework,
no single organisation is responsible
or accountable for coordinating it, or
ensuring relevance to the local jobs
market.

Successive governments over the last two
decades have tried to make employment
and skills provision more responsive to
local needs as part of extensive reforms
in education, skills and employment
provision. Some of these reforms have
been welcome but others have further
contributed to the confusion of policies,
budgets and initiatives at the local level.

Young people are consequently receiving
piecemeal advice that is not always
contextualised for Bradford. This lack of
clarity continues into adulthood, meaning
many individuals, including older adults,
are not supported to continue to develop
their skills throughout their working lives.
Indeed, research has indicated that many
people who are already in-work are not
aware that there are services to support
them with career change and careers
management.

A clear example of this is around careers
provision. The employment and skills
system must be underpinned by a good
independent careers advice and guidance
system recent reforms have led to an
uncoordinated market in providing careers
advice in schools. Whilst the aspirations
of the government’s Careers Strategy
align with ours for our residents, we do
not believe it will address the fundamental
problems of a complex market and
provision will remain fragmented.
Some Bradford schools commission their
own careers and information, advice
and guidance arrangements. Other
schools and colleges co-commission
the Connexions service with the Council,
whilst national agencies like the National
Careers Service, Careers and Enterprise

This is critical for the success of our
local workforce and the economy. We
recognise there are significant changes
and challenges for our economies and the
world of work over the coming decade:
p	Automation at work is one challenge
that will impact both tasks and
occupations and the impact is
accelerating. In the region of 30% of
jobs locally are projected to be in scope
to be significantly impacted, however
despite this research continues to
predict that the number of jobs will
continue to grow.
p	Brexit and our trading arrangements

Page 56
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

19

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

with the rest of the world will also
bring changes to our economy and
the labour market. Ultimately we
anticipate the labour market will
tighten post-Brexit and as patterns and
expectations of work change.
p	Polarisation of the labour market, with
recruitment increasingly focussed on
entry level roles or senior leadership
and reduced opportunities to work the
way up to leadership roles through an
organisation
p	Increasing casualisation of work more of our District and the Leeds
City Region as a whole are in casual
employment than is the case nationally,
with more of these women rather
than men. In addition to a lack of job
security, typically this is also results
in fewer opportunities for training and
development.
The scale and impact of these are clearly
complex to predict. Above all else we
need education and training systems
which are agile enough to respond to
these and other challenges that may arise.
We also need to ensure that our residents
have access to the skills and development
opportunities to support career changes
therefore effectively future proofing them
as the economy evolves.
Similarly adult education provision lacks
coordination and is affecting the success
of our working age population. There is a
wide acknowledgement amongst partners
in the District that future prosperity will

be as dependent on improving and
renewing adult skills as it will be on the
skills of future generations, and certainly
the majority of the workforce we are
talking about in our 2030 targets are
already of working age. People are now
working longer and with the potential for
automation, trading arrangements and
other factors to drive significant economic
and occupational change there is an
increasing the need for adults to up-skill
and reskill.
There will also be significant opportunities
presented by local infrastructure
developments and across the wider Leeds
City Region economy. The Northern
Powerhouse Rail and Northern Gas
Network’s H21 project will potentially
create thousands of job opportunities that
our residents could access with the right
training and skills levels.
Therefore, meeting the future needs of the
economy means investing in the skills of
those who are in work today. The Adult
Education Budget is a central plank of
how we best support the education and
skills outcomes to deliver our employment
and economic ambitions. Currently this
is centrally administered and funded to
national guidance and prescriptions with
limited design or oversight locally.
As with careers provision, residents
struggle to navigate the provision on
offer and as a consequence the goals
of and progression from their learning
are not always clearly focussed and as
such do not deliver enough employment

Page 57
20

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

outcomes. Bringing together and
localising support in a single framework to
reduce costs, complexity and duplication
will improve access to services, and
respond to community and business
needs. This will also enable us to make
full use of the fantastic education and
community facilities which host or deliver
employment and skills services to provide
ensure a locally tailored offer.

employers skills survey demonstrating an
increase in hard to fill vacancies because
of skill shortage, training expenditure
per employee remained broadly the
same as previous years. We have had
great success in involving employers in
education as is seen in part two of this
Plan, but we must encourage employers
to invest more in skills and boosting
productivity.

Within this the Council is key to
bringing Government, Local Enterprise
Partnerships, local employers, schools,
providers and the local third sector into a
partnership to deliver inclusive growth.

Similarly our anchor institutions must
examine how we use our collective
purchasing power to boost the public
investment in employment and skills,
and also how we transform our practices
to ensure we are reflective of the
communities we are at the heart of.

Alongside this employer investment
in their workforce training is critical
to modernising our skills. Despite the

Page 58
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

21

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Towards devolution?
The centralised model for employment
and skills in this country has to date
not delivered a fully integrated, ‘whole
systems’ approach, yet the experience
of devolution to date has been patchy
across the country. In some areas
this has effectively meant that LEPS
and Local Authorities have been little
more than local managing agents of
a national programme. The mayoral
combined authorities have seen greater
devolution and secured deals such as
West Midlands’ project to deliver an all
age careers.
The Area Based Reviews of post
16 education and training across
England (2015-2017) were a part of this
general trajectory aiming as they did
to achieve a “better responsiveness to
local employer needs and economic
priorities”. Locally this has stimulated
tripartite conversations between
colleges, WYCA and the Council
focussed on local and regional
priorities. This is a promising start
ahead of devolution and creates the

foundations for the relationships and
processes that would be necessary to
make a local settlement a success.
Proposed changes to LEP boundaries
and governance, the development
of Local Industrial Strategies and
early indications of how the Shared
Prosperity Fund (that will replacing EU
funding) will be distributed, reinforce
the idea that this devolution agenda
will continue to progress. It is certainly
anticipated that, despite the geography
not currently being clear, that there
will be a devolution deal that covers
Bradford during the cycle of Pioneering,
Confident and Connected.
A key theme of this Plan’s priority
actions is greater local co-ordination
of budgets and provision. The Plan is
clearly written to be a success within the
context of the current employment and
skills landscape. However the nature of
the priority actions is such that much of
the proposed activity has a direction of
travel that is naturally aligned with any
future devolution to local levels.

Page 59
22

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

2

PART TWO:

OUR GOALS AND PLAN

OUR GOALS

THE PLAN

Our Plan sets out how the public
investment in local workforce services
can be better aligned to achieve the
targets from the Pioneering, Confident
and Connected. In doing so the priority
actions in the plan will increase economic
opportunity, improve progression
opportunities and deliver high quality
services.
The goals for our future approach are to:
p	Support career advancement and
income mobility by helping young
people, jobseekers and those in work
develop high-demand skills;

To realise these goals a series of priority
actions are outlined below focussing on
three key areas:
1. Building skills employers seek
2. Improving Job Quality
3.	Connecting our Communities to Good
Jobs and Careers
These priority actions have been
developed with partners and reflect both
the current employment and skills context
in Bradford as described in Part 1, but
would also provide the framework for skills
provision in a post-devolution landscape.

p	Ensure businesses in Bradford can find
the talent they need within the District;
p	Improve the quality of low-wage jobs
to benefit both workers and their
employers;
p	Support more of our vulnerable
jobseekers and long-term workless into
work;
p	Support businesses to develop high
performing workforces; and
p	Function as a coherent system that
rewards job quality instead of the
quantity of placements by using
system-wide outcome data.

Page 60
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

23

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

1

Building SKILLS EMPLOYERS SEEK

To deliver the growth ambitions in the
Economic Strategy it is critical that
Bradford’s businesses can efficiently
recruit local people with job-relevant
skills and education. Implementing our
priority actions will ensure that children,
young people and adult jobseekers gain
the education, training, experience,
and employment connections needed
to secure a stable job that pays a living
wage.

are in-demand by local employers. It
combines technical training and workbased learning that lead directly to
entry-level jobs that have opportunity for
advancement within the same sector.
This approach recognises that the
workforce system has to serve two client
bases – employers and individuals. It
must be able to sell and deliver a high
quality service to employers while also
implementing training that meets the
needs of individuals.

PRIORITY ACTION 1
Expand sector-based
workforce development
to serve young people
through growing the
Industrial Centres of
Excellence
Having the youngest population in the
UK (outside London) is a key asset as
identified in the Economic Strategy. As
a Child Friendly District we have clear
ambitions that our young people leave
education as work ready as possible
having had rich and varied experiences.
The ICE approach is a key strand of that
development.
A sector based approach to workforce
development is built on the skills needs
of individual sectors. The focus is on
the occupational or technical skills that
are required for specific job families that

The District will work to establish nine
Industrial Centres of Excellence (ICE)
to ensure that every child will have the
opportunity to access a high quality career
and learning pathway from the age of 14 to
meet their needs and stimulates diversity
across the workforce in every sector of the
economy.
ICE are industry-led sector based
education:business partnerships as a
vehicle for aligning local skills provision
with workforce planning. ICE is the
starting place and driver of our District’s
career pathways systems-building. At
its heart an ICE is a forum for regular
discussions and relations between
employers and educators with analyses
of demand for particular occupations and
skills ensuring that these discussions
are evidence-based. Each ICE plays
an important role in bringing together
educators with businesses to ensure

Page 61
24

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

that education programmes, capital, and
learning experiences remain current
and in-step with employer demand.
This feedback loop will be critical in
informing young people’s and educators’
understanding of the composition of job
roles in different sectors.

The approach will also further develop
non-sector specific skills which are
used widely across different parts of
the economy. The chart below indicates
the most common core skills gaps that
employers say need improving.

Soft / people skills that need improving in occupations with skills gaps
Ability to manage own time and prioritise own tasks
Team working
Customer handling skills
Managing their own feelings, or handling the feelings of others
Persuading or influencing others
Managing and motivating other staff
Instructing, teaching or training people
Sales skills
Setting objectives for others and planning human, financial resources
Making speeches or presentations
SELF-MANAGEMENT SKILLS
MANAGEMENT AND LEADERSHIP SKILLS
SALES AND CUSTOMER SKILLS

0%

Given the unpredictability of economic
changes it remains important to ensure
that the ICE deliver skills with application
across multiple sectors. For example the
Government’s Digital Strategy predicts
that in 20 years 90% of all jobs will require
some element of digital skills. This is
especially important for young people
as they continue to develop and explore

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

80%

70%

their skills and interests and will support
them with career changes later in life
and supporting mobility as employer
requirements change over time.
ICE therefore inform every preparatory
career step for the young person through
their learning pathway that equips them
with the qualifications, competencies,

Page 62
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

25

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

credentials, and experiences necessary
for success. The nine ICEs will provide a
comprehensive set of career and learning
pathways that lead ultimately into work
covering all sectors of the economy and
most occupational areas.
Future ICE Approach Framework (for each ICE)
Career Exploitation

Career Preparation
Key Stage 4 (age 14-16)

●● Careers awareness
education programme
aligned to Bradford
Pathways
Sector Framework
●● ICE awareness
and promotion

Post 16

FE / HE

ICE programme of study / pathway
GCSE options mix
(relevant to sector)
Technical Qualification(s)
(relevant to sector)

●● ICE cohort recruitment

Summer Programme

Key stage 5 (age 11-15)

Academic
Qualification(s)
(relevant to sector)
Technical
Qualification(s)
(relevant to sector)

FE /
HE
Paths

4 Year Sector Based Curriculum Enrichment Programme
Embedded Work-Related Learning
Work Based Learning Placements
4 Year Sector Based Curriculum Enrichment Programme

Ensuring young people develop
the skills business seeks

communities for careers through:

ICE broadens aspirations and supports
young people to develop a range of sector
specific employability skills. It builds on
the Gatsby Benchmarks: a stable careers
programme; learning from career and
labour market information; addressing the
needs of each pupil; linking curriculum
learning to careers; encounters with
employers and employees, experiences of
workplaces; encounters with further and
higher education and personal guidance.
The ICE prepares young people from all

p	A curriculum linked to industry
offering sector specific technical and
employability knowledge and skills
influenced by industry leaders.
p	A four year curriculum enrichment
programme linked to each sector.
p	Providing clear learning pathways into
post-secondary/higher education,
apprenticeships and employment.
p	Providing young people with a set of indemand and marketable qualifications
to help them secure employment.

Page 63
26

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

p	Effectively engaging young people
with local businesses to enable
them to understand what employers
require from their employees through
experiencing the workplace.

economy which interest them the most,
moving away from stereotypical routes to
the Labour Market. The inclusivity of this
approach will also benefit our employers
through expanding their talent pool and
stimulating interest in their opportunities.

Building on success
Today there are over 300 business
engaged with ICE, of which 28 sit on one
of the existing five ICE Boards. Eighteen
of our secondary schools, the three FE
Colleges based in the District, and the
University of Bradford are also all key
partners. Through 2018/19 academic year
it is expected that we will work with over
15,000 young people through the ICE
programme.
Our current ICEs cover:
p	Advanced Engineering and
Manufacturing
p	Business and Retail
p	Construction
p	Environmental Technologies
p	Health and Social Care
We plan to expand the approach with 4
new ICEs covering:
p	Hospitality and Tourism
p	Public Service and Law
p	Creative Digital and Arts
p	Transport and Logistics
The expansion of the ICE approach
will enable all young people to pursue
career pathways into the sectors of the

PRIORITY ACTION 2
ESTABLISH BRADFORD
PATHWAYS AS THE CAREERS
PATHWAY FRAMEWORK
FOR THE DISTRICT’S
WORKFORCE SYSTEM
The term ‘career pathways’, used
in this Plan for both young people
and adults, describes education and
training programmes that offer a wellarticulated sequence of courses and
work experiences aligned with employer
skill demands. These career pathways
lead to the completion of industry-valued
qualifications. Pathways are designed to
offer students multiple clear entry and exit
points for education and training as they
progress toward a degree or the highest
industry credential required for a specific
occupation. They work to enable people
to find jobs with increasing responsibility
knowing they can access additional
training as needed to move ahead.
Career pathways form a particularly
effective approach for launching young
people and workless adults into good jobs
because they can be designed to serve
a range of populations and skill levels.

Page 64
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

27

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Bradford Pathways provides an overall
framework for careers and technical
education in the District and involves
children, young people and adults in all
phases of education and careers.
Bradford Pathways career and technical education continuum

1

Active industry
engagement in
student learning

3

Able to follow career
and technical
pathways

5

Multiple entry
and exit points
for 16+ learning
pathways

COLLEGE

PRIMARY
SCHOOL
Career
Awareness

SECONDARY
SCHOOL (KS3)
Career
Exploration

SECONDARY
SCHOOL (KS4+)
Career
Preparation

CAREER
TRAINING &
PROGRESSION

APPRENTICESHIPS
6th FORM
UNIVERSITY

16

14

2

16

Strong integration
student support

4

While career and technical education,
in and of itself, is a powerful tool for
enhancing student learning, it holds
particular promise within the context of the
Bradford Pathways career and technical
education framework. Bradford Pathways
frame career and technical education as
part of a journey. It is designed so that
the curriculum and experiences that form
the learning and career pathways builds
from one stage to the next and varies in
purpose.
At the first stage are less intense activities,
such as workplace and community
setting tours and job shadowing, intended
primarily to foster career exposure and
exploration. At the second stage are

Seamless transition
from secondary to
post-secondary

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

Qualified
workforce has
district/regional
relevance

work-based learning experiences, work
experience, internships, service learning
and school-based social and commercial
enterprises. These provide opportunities
for more in-depth engagement with
activities that have applications beyond
the classroom and create a platform
for multiple options after education. At
this stage, students may learn and use
employable skills, but the primary goal is
on-going learning, not only employment.
Beyond this, technical education is much
more focused on career preparation. It
is the most career-focused stage with
learning programmes designed to prepare
students for entry into the workplace. Yet,
the journey does not end with entering into

Page 65
28

6

work rather this is just the start of career
progression and life long learning.

Delivering a Careers and Skills
Curriculum
To further bring to life the Bradford
Pathways approach we are working with
the Bradford Research School to develop
and assess an essential skills curriculum
and a careers curriculum for all phases.
Without doubt, all young people need
a range of knowledge, skills and habits
to become successful and thrive. The
Bradford Pathways Essentials Skills
framework identifies those skills most
desirable for this success such as
communication, critical thinking, problem
solving, entrepreneurship and leadership.
It was designed with local businesses
and further developed by the Bradford
Research School to be delivered through
a range of activities throughout the school
day that enhances students’ classroom
and learning experiences. Direct ties to
community, education, and work are vital
aspects to the delivery of essential skills.
Running alongside the Bradford Pathways
Essentials Skills framework, the District
will work to develop a careers curriculum
so children and young people learn about
the world of work in a structured way.
Applied STEM Learning
The volume and range of STEM-related
jobs is growing all the time, but filling those
jobs has been a challenge in Bradford,
Leeds City Region and throughout

the country. While STEM education is
important for both students and employers
in a practical sense of finding and filling
jobs, it is equally important for cultivating
a generation of students with the skills
needed to solve the most pressing
challenges we experience in the modern
world.
The District will develop an applied STEM
learning programme; STEM education can
begin as early as nursery school, with a
focus on how the scientific method can
be applied in everyday life. By secondary
school, STEM programmes are more
rigorous and can be stand-alone learning
experiences or integrated into various
classes. Our emphasis is placed on
STEM opportunities for active and applied
learning to build the deep mathematical
and scientific base of knowledge that
students will need to compete and
succeed in a future we cannot predict.

Page 66

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

29

PRIORITY ACTION 3
CONTINUE TO IMPROVE THE
STANDARDS OF POST-16
PROVISION
To increase the skills of Bradford’s
workforce, particularly at higher levels, we
need an education and skills system that
operates at the highest levels of quality
and excellence. The District will support
Bradford’s schools and colleges and help
spread best practice across the education
system to improve attainment by age 16,
so that more young people are equipped
with the necessary skills needed to
achieve a Level 3 equivalent qualification
by age 19. To enable progression into
intermediate and higher-level skills, we
need to ensure that Bradford’s schools
continue to improve attainment levels
at Key Stage 4, particularly among
underachieving groups, such as white
British boys and girls from disadvantaged
backgrounds.
The District will champion high quality
post-16 education in Bradford, by

supporting its infrastructure through the
continuing implementation of the Post-16
Review. The District will work together to
ensure the successful opening of Dixon’s
Sixth Form College and New College
Bradford from September 2019. It will
also champion the development of a new
large school sixth form college in the
north of the District to ensure that young
people across Bradford have access to a
fuller range of academic options and an
exceptional learning environment.
Good technical education requires expert
teachers, lecturers, and leaders. It also
requires industry standard facilities to
ensure learning is relevant to current
and future employer needs. The District
will champion the need for investment
in infrastructure and facilities in further
education through with greater strategic
focus on in-demand skills at the District
and Leeds City Region Level. It will
ensure that any future funding will support
existing providers and where necessary
the development of high-quality,
financially-stable institutions with strong
employer links.

Page 67
30

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

PRIORITY ACTION 4
SUPPORT STUDENTS,
PARENTS AND CARERS,
AND JOBSEEKERS TO MAKE
INFORMED DECISIONS ON
THEIR FUTURE PATHWAYS
THROUGH ESTABLISHING AN
ALL AGE CAREERS SERVICE
People can only make good careers
choices if they have good reliable
information on which to make these
choices. Everyone should have access
to high-quality, impartial Information,
Advice and Guidance (IAG), allowing them
to make the most of our dynamic and
evolving economy throughout their working
life. The current fragmented approach to
IAG across different ages as described in
part one does not support this.
To ensure this happens, the District will
seek to develop single, coherent all-age
careers information, advice and guidance
offer, bringing together existing provision
and online resources under a unifying
brand that is accessible to all our residents.
The partnership will seek to:
p	Provide relevant support at key
education and career stages, from
primary school all the way through to
in-work progression.
p	Enable access to personal guidance,
recognising the diversity of need and
ensuring a service tailored to individual
need.

p	Base careers advice and guidance
on local labour market intelligence to
ensure business have a talent pipeline
with the right skills.
p	Work with partners across Leeds City
Region to ensure our residents are
aware of trends and requirements
across wider local geographies,
acknowledging that around 30% of
Bradford’s employed residents do not
work in the District.

The importance of personal
guidance
If young people, adult job-seekers or
career changers are to make the best
decisions about their future careers,
employment opportunities and learning
pathways then personal guidance or
counselling is essential. We recognise
research shows that counsellors currently
work with too many people to provide the
differentiated levels of attention needed
to make an impact on everyone they
support. The continuing investment in
personal guidance and counselling at
an appropriate level will be encouraged
and will form an essential part of our all
age careers service approach. Making
informed choices will not only support
immediate career choices but accessing
the right qualifications, skills and
experience future proofs our residents
enabling greater mobility in the Labour
Market, and increasing career options as
the economy shifts.

Page 68
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

31

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Help inform parents and carers

high returning apprenticeships.

Parents and carers naturally want their
children to find happiness and success
in life and are a major influence in their
children’s career development and
decision-making. Research also indicates
that when students feel supported
and loved by their parents, they have
more confidence in their own ability to
research careers and to choose a career
that would be interesting and exciting.
This is important because studies show
that young people who feel competent
regarding career decision-making tend to
make more satisfying career choices later
in life.

Part of the explanation for this lies
in careers guidance which does not
adequately convey information to
young women of the low wages that are
prevalent in certain traditionally female
occupations that continue to demonstrate
strong gender bias such as hairdressing.
The District will work to ensure that
parents have the information they need to
support their children make decisions on
their future pathways.

Parents influence the level of education
or training their children attain; the
knowledge they have about work and
different occupations; their beliefs and
attitudes towards working; and the
motivation they have to succeed. Most of
this is learned unconsciously – children
and young people absorb their parents’
attitudes and expectations of them as they
grow up. The type of provision studied is
also critical in terms of return and potential
future earnings. For example there is
significant variation across subject areas
with typically low returns in areas like hair
and beauty, and business administration,
and much higher returns in engineering
and STEM-based apprenticeships. There
is also a strong gender consideration. The
most frequent apprenticeships undertaken
by women tend to be those with low rates
of return, whilst men predominate in the

Support for career progression
Research has demonstrated that only 1
in 4 people in low pay nationally will have
moved out of low pay in ten years time.
Also opportunities to progress are not
accessed equally as women and older
people are more likely to stay in low-paid
jobs compared to men and young people.
A further problem is that of insecure
employment and the proportion of workers
who want more hours, which are both
rising and both concentrated in low paid
jobs. This lack of progression and its
concentration in certain demographics
clearly hinders social mobility.
Supporting our residents who are
already in work to understand where the
opportunities are in the economy and
how to navigate the skills offer to access
appropriate training will be key functions of
the all age careers service.
Career pathways are not a quick fix.
They require a long-term commitment.

Page 69
32

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

PRIORITY ACTION 5
INCREASE WORK-BASED
LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES
FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG
PEOPLE AND ADULTS
TO SUPPORT CAREER
PATHWAYS
Whilst apprenticeships and traineeships
are important work based learning
programmes, the term is much wider
covering a range of activities emphasising
learning in a real work environment
and through practice. The active
and full engagement of employers in
designing and supporting the delivery
of work-based learning, in whatever

forms that might take is essential to the
success of career pathways. The role
of employers in providing work-based
learning experiences and support is vital
throughout the whole learner journey.
Activities range from shorter and less
formal workplace learning such as
site visits to longer and more intensive
programmes such as apprenticeships. It
is important as most jobs require previous
experience of work so we need to ensure
that learners and jobseekers are able
to build up a portfolio of work-based
learning experiences to help them secure
sustained work.

Work-Based Learning Experiences and the Learner Journey

Learning About Work

Learning Through Work

Learning at Work

Career awareness and
exploration helps individuals
build awareness of the variety
of careers available and
provide experiences that help
inform career decisions.
• Career Counselling
• Career Planning
• Career Fairs
• Career Presentations
• Industry Speakers
• Informational Interviews
• Mentoring
• Worksite Tours

Career preparation supports
career readiness and includes
extended direct interaction
with professionals from
industry and the community.
• Clinical Experiences
• Work Experiences
• Internships
•	Pre-apprenticeship /
Traineeships
• Project-based Learning

Career progression training
occurs at a work site and
prepares individuals for
employment.
• Apprenticeship
• On-the-job Training
•	Employee / Organisational
Development
• Graduate Programme
• Industrial Placement
• Assisted work

Education Coordinated

Business Led

OUTCOMES: Skilled Talent for Businesses + Meaningful Careers for Students and Jobseekers

Page 70
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

33

a full range of work-based learning
experiences. In addition, we will provide
employers with support and advice to
create high quality work-based learning
experiences that are aligned to both their
businesses and the learners’ journey.

Work-based learning provides the learner
with hands-on, real world experience
and delivers better outcomes than the
alternatives as by definition the approach
is directly aligned with the skills employers
seek. The diagram above is designed
to illustrate the variety of work-based
learning activities that can be pursued,
as well as which activities take place
primarily within educational settings and
which are located on a job site. Work
experience, internships, and career
exposure are vitally important for young
people and provide career-launching
opportunities that may not have otherwise
been available to them.
Research confirms that early work-based
learning offers potentially enormous
value for young people, particularly those
from low-income families. In particular
economically disadvantaged males who
undertake work-based learning exhibit
stronger rates of academic persistence
and attainment.
Under the umbrella of the Industrial
Centres of Excellence partnership we
will continue to engage with employers to
invest in all education phases and provide

Education Covenant
The Education Covenant provides a
road map to change and a new way
for community stakeholders to work
together. The overarching goal of
Education Covenant is to collectively align
community resources to ensure that all
youth succeed in education, career and
life, because successful children lead to a
vibrant and thriving community.
To accomplish this the Education
Covenant involves schools, colleges,
the University, voluntary and community
organisations, museums and cultural
institutions, businesses, and parents
working together to align efforts
throughout the full spectrum of their
development in Bradford – from cradle to
career. .
Simply, our Education Covenant is about
everyone in Bradford keeping education
a top priority mobilising the community
to collaborate and deliver through its key
objectives:
p	Helping schools and teachers raise
standards.
p	Supporting parents to get children
ready for school, work and life.

Page 71
34

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

p	Working with businesses and colleges
to boost career options.
p	Championing the District’s unique art
and culture.
The number of community partners
gathered from every sector that are
engaged and connected with others
as a result of the Education Covenant
speaks to the commitment of all involved
to advance this common agenda for the
benefit of each child and young person in
the District. For example, 30% of Bradford
businesses actively supported children
and young people at school, college and
the university through a range of work
related activities in the last twelve months.

Expand early career opportunities
The more vulnerable young people or
adult jobseekers and residents with
less formal skills, need similar access
to career exploration, preparation, and
progression work-related experiences.
This is particularly valuable to those
young people who have limited work
experience or adult jobseekers who are
seeking a career transition after a long
period of not working to enable them to
meet businesses skills needs. Through
the ICE Partnerships the District will
work to engage employers to increase
investment to provide young people
opportunities to receive career exploration
and skill development through internships,
traineeships, apprenticeships, and other
work-based learning placements.

Page 72
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

35

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

change that will reward job quality as
opposed to the quantity of job placements.

PRIORITY ACTION 6
IMPLEMENT A SYSTEM-WIDE
DATA INFRASTRUCTURE
THAT MEASURE JOB
OUTCOMES, TRACKS
PERFORMANCE AND SHIFTS
IN LOCAL ECONOMIC NEED
For many years, delivery of skills has
largely been left to market forces, but
given the fragmented nature of this
approach it will not deliver the best
outcomes for either Bradford’s businesses
or our residents. Bradford’s economy
operates in competitive global markets
and to continue and accelerate growth
it requires a highly skilled and agile
workforce. Young people and adults in
Bradford need an inclusive workforce
development system that enables their
continuous development to reflect
evolving employer skill requirements.
The District therefore aims to
collaboratively develop a more strategic
approach to understanding the market
so the skills system can operate more
effectively.
There are a wide range of workforce
programmes that engage with
employers, young people and jobseekers
independently, using their own outcomes,
definitions, processes and data. The
result is confusion for users, disparity in
quality, and limited data to inform better
outcomes. Addressing this will act as
an enabler for meaningful system-wide

Key to improving outcomes is creating
better systems. A career pathways system
aligns employers, workforce development
agencies, education providers, funders and
other partners to identify shared goals and
drive changes in programmes, institutions
and policies to address employer demand
through multiple career pathways based
on industry sectors. A vital component of
integrating the workforce system and its
constituent parts will be creating one set
of metrics with shared definitions. The
guiding principle is data driven decisionmaking, facilitating and sustaining
coordinated action, and advocating for and
align funding around what works.
Such an approach is the only way to learn
what works and what doesn’t amongst our
provision and change matters accordingly,
meaning Bradford can consistently improve
the value for money the offer delivers.
Bradford Council will provide co-ordination
and administration functions to grow
our analytical capabilities and leverage
standardised definitions. This will underpin
an integrated data infrastructure that will
provide timely information and intelligence
building a culture of: Monitor, Evaluate,
Feedback, and Improve. Ultimately this
will enable us to understand our trajectory
against the targets of the Economic
Strategy and where and how we need to
focus activity to successfully achieve them.

Page 73
36

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

2

IMPROVING JOB QUALITY

A modern workforce system must support
business to improve their performance
to raise the productivity of our local
economy to achieve our targets and
increase the number and quality of jobs
on offer. It is important to develop a local
offer for businesses that enables further
improvement of their leadership and
management, effective workforce practice,
and inclusive recruitment approaches.

PRIORITY ACTION 7
RECOGNISE HIGH-ROAD
EMPLOYERS WITH GOOD
BUSINESS PRACTICES
The District will test new ways of working
with industry to promote and encourage
good business practice and in-work
progression. In particular the focus will
be on promoting increased investment

in skills development. This will include
identifying and promoting where
employers are taking steps to develop
the skills of their existing workforce and
making more effective use of skills.
Good business practice such as
consistent scheduling, supervision,
access to employee benefits can help
employers improve their own bottom line.
In many cases, however, small employers
have limited resources to make significant
changes and little room for error. Many
require more technical assistance if they
are to embrace practices that better
support businesses to grow and low-wage
workers.
The District will work to expand business
solutions suite of services to include
human resource support focused on
improving job quality and workforce
productivity.

Page 74
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

37

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Establish a First Source
Recruitment process

PRIORITY ACTION 8
MAXIMISE ANCHOR
INSTITUTIONS’ ECONOMIC
POWER FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE LOCAL COMMUNITIES,
ECONOMY AND JOBS
The large and long standing institutions in
a city such as the universities, colleges,
hospitals, and cultural institutions – and
the power of harnessing their collective
spend and resources will support the
local economy and spread inclusive
employment practices.
Anchor institutions are themselves major
drivers of economic growth across the
District. For example Bradford Council
makes significant investment on local
economic development activities. In the
future the District wants to leverage its
combined public sector investments for
better job outcomes. There have been
some successful links between economic
development projects and workforce
programmes such as with the Broadway
Shopping Centre and the development
of City Park that in the future we need to
build on.
It is clearly recognised that by working
together, anchor institutions can achieve
more than any single institution working
on its own. While physical development
is important to urban revitalisation,
communities cannot succeed unless
the people living there are valued and
empowered.

Moving forward, the District will work to
ensure that its public investments and
spending power create avenues for local
people to obtain stable employment and
career advancement opportunities.
Key to this new approach will be
implementing a comprehensive ‘First
Source’ recruitment programme. Working
through SkillsHouse, the programme will
encourage businesses that are receiving
funding through public contracts to share
their open positions with SkillsHouse and
consider the referred, matched candidates
for their open jobs. Whilst the First Source
system does not require businesses
to recruit the referred candidates as
SkillsHouse will source and supply the most
appropriate candidates, businesses must
make good-faith efforts to do so.
As new economic development projects
break ground, SkillsHouse will work with
developers to create a customised package
to support their recruitment and skills
needs for the jobs that public investment
helped to create SkillsHouse have a proven
and scalable customised training and
recruitment model, valued by businesses
through which they are able to able access
direct support for their recruitment and
training needs.

Expand Community Value benefits
through public investment
Our local anchor institutions have enormous
buying power: The Council, University,

Page 75
38

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

colleges and hospitals have considerable
budgets. Yet, currently we do not work
collectively to ensure that this investment
builds local companies and provides
good jobs locally. The reasons for this
are complex. Like all businesses, anchor
institutions face internal pressure to lower
spending and control costs, and in many
cases the lowest prices come from distant
suppliers. Also, appropriate local suppliers
may not exist to provide needed goods or
services, or buyers may be unaware of the
goods and services available locally.
As a District we will work to harness the
spending power of anchor institutions
to strengthen the local economy and
create good jobs for local residents.
We will work to enable and encourage
anchor institutions to purchase goods
and services from locally-owned or
based businesses rather than non-local
businesses. We will then encourage these
community businesses, in turn, to reinvest
in their communities, building the wealth of
other local businesses and residents.
We also want to explore how the
flexibilities around the Apprenticeship
Levy can be pooled utilised to develop
routes into Apprenticeships for our
residents and to support SMEs who work
with Anchor institutions to offer more
Apprenticeships.

Inclusive employers
Through local and inclusive hiring,
anchor institutions can lift up local
residents, create career pathways

for low-income, minority, and underrepresented populations, and so transform
communities. In the process, anchor
institutions can develop a more efficient
workforce pipeline, meet sustainability and
inclusion goals, and ultimately improve
local well-being.
The District will work to establish a local
and inclusive hiring approach to connect
employment to residents in our local
communities.

PRIORITY ACTION 9
Improve the job quality
in the health and care
sectors to make best
use of their current
and future workforce
and deliver outstanding
healthcare
Healthcare is a high priority industry for
the District. Healthcare is the largest
sector, providing a range of employment
opportunities from entry-level, relatively
low-skilled jobs, to highly skilled medical
positions. The most difficult to fill local
healthcare jobs reflect that range of
careers. On one hand we struggle to
recruit medical roles such as Psychiatric
Nurses, Neonatal Nurses, Diagnostic
Radiographers, Clinical Psychologists,
Registered Pharmacists, Operating
Theatre Clinicians, and General
Practitioners. On the other hand there are
also shortages in social care positions,
such as Home Care Assistants, Social

Page 76
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

39

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

Workers, and Educational Psychologists.
Turnover, across the sector runs at over
20% which in some positions can be as
high as 50%. This exacerbates existing
shortages that result from increased
demands for services, creating an even
greater need for career pipelines to serve
the industry.
The District will develop the Health and
Social Care Economic Partnership to
focus on improving workforce outcomes
in Bradford’s health and social care
sectors. The Partnership will oversee
the ‘One Workforce’ programme that
will support train jobseekers to fill the
growing number of jobs in our local health
economy. The Partnership will also inform
the development within our partnerships
of training programmes to develop the
existing workforce, fill skills gaps, and
connect local communities to high quality
jobs.

PRIORITY ACTION 10
Develop a one stop shop
system for supporting
businesses to improve
workforce productivity
To implement a more aligned workforce
system for the benefits of employers to
support them improve their workforce
productivity the District will implement a
‘one-stop shop’. To support employers
improve the skills of their workforce and
business practice to ensure business are

able to put innovative ideas into practice to
improve their productivity.
Building and developing skills is widely
recognised a key part of a businesses’
ability to absorb and use ideas and
technologies from elsewhere to improve
business performance. This has to
be across the entire workforce from
leadership and management/high-level
skill occupations, through to intermediateskilled technicians, and entry-level
positions.
A more joined-up offer to support
businesses improve their business
practices would provide a more
compelling and comprehensive business
case to employers for up-skilling, and
allow different agencies to take advantage
of employer relationships established in
other parts of the system.
An important aspect is to ensure it
enables businesses to access a full
range of appropriate services that meet
their needs. To provide employers a
diagnostic service from which generalist
advisers could signpost employers to
specialists in different organisations. It
is important that employers have their
cases actively managed through their
enquiry to find a solution and not require
repeat interactions duplicating previous
conversations.

Page 77
40

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

3

CONNECTING OUR COMMUNITIES TO GOD JOBS AND CAREERS

All our residents and communities need to
be able to access the opportunities in the
local economy, as is set out in part one of
the Plan this is not currently the case. It
is important to develop the connections
between the new jobs that are being
created, our local people, and career
progression particularly if we are to hit the
target of 20,000 more people into work by
2030.
This means we must engage residents
who are economically inactive and
currently not connecting with the
employment and skills system, and
support them onto the journey to work.

PRIORITY ACTION 11
Develop Bridging
Programmes that
prepare young people
and jobseekers
with limited formal
qualifications for
work and in-work
progression
As Bradford builds a career pathways
system, the more vulnerable young
people and jobseekers with fewer formal
qualifications must not be left behind.
To increase access to entry-level jobs
with career advancement potential, the
District will develop a common approach
to employment bridging programmes.

These programmes will deliver the
academic credentials, experiences, and
technical skills to secure entry to work and
advance further through in-work training.
More mainstream programmes may not
meet the needs of these residents as
those programmes are not specifically
designed to:
p	Provide intensive support services to
the individual;
p	Provide contextualised and experiential
learning opportunities that embed
numeracy and literacy with career
education;
p	Provide financial support that enables a
young person to meet their immediate
needs while participating in learning;
p	Connect the young person to caring
and supportive adults;
Our challenge is how we work
collaboratively to better meet these needs
within the transition into work. One way
to maximise the impact of a diverse range
of programmes is to develop a common
brand. Currently organisations that
run programmes supporting vulnerable
learners on the whole engage with
employers and young people on their own.
The result can be confusing for jobseekers
and employers alike.
Many employers will not have the capacity
to investigate the differences between
the differing services and programmes

Page 78
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

41

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

requiring their staffing needs to be
met quickly and efficiently. If their user
experience is unsatisfying, they will look
elsewhere to fill future vacancies.
Young people and jobseekers face a
similar challenge: without a guide to what
services are available and where, they
have to try to figure out which programme
best meets their needs. The difficulty
in navigating the provision increases
the odds that they will not get what they
need. Too often our residents are sent
to numerous organisations and since
information is often not shared effectively,
they must re-start the whole process
of intake and assessment in each new
setting.
To improve this situation, we will work
across all organisations to align bridging
and pre-employment services under a
unified brand. This outward facing service
will ‘hide the wiring’ resulting in a more
user-friendly service for employers and
young people and jobseekers alike.

The Bradford Journey to Work
‘The Bradford Journey to Work’ is
designed to be the framework to
coordinate employment bridging
programmes to serve individuals who are
not yet ready for college, apprenticeships
or career-track jobs. The career focus of
bridging programmes distinguishes them
from other adult education programmes.

long-term return. For example, the ESIF
funded STEP programme has proven
effective in preparing jobseekers with few
formal qualifications. STEP offers a much
more extensive and intensive experience
than many bridging programmes. The
offer is tailored dependent on individual
need. Participants have access to a
curriculum that conveys employability
skills, functional literacy and numeracy
related to the occupational area, a six
month work placement, and on-going
in-work support. The results show that
those vulnerable residents who had been
through STEP were more likely to be in
work at much higher rates than more
traditional employment programmes.
There is a wide array of adult education
support across the district. We also need
to take this opportunity to coordinate
and contextualise this offer to create a
pathway to jobs with in-work training.
Courses such as English for Speakers of
Other Languages, family and community
programmes, and work readiness
programmes provide the opportunity to
offer job-relevant training and employment
services.
The Bradford Journey to Work presents
a prime opportunity for differing agencies
to understand where their service sits
positioning them to target the next step
for their customers more effectively
and offering multiple engagement
opportunities and entry points.

The investment of public funds this journey
will require is significant but so is the

Page 79
42

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

PRIORITY ACTION 12
Unlocking the potential
of women in employment
in Bradford
A key objective of this Plan is to enable
individuals and families to make
choices that best suit their individual
circumstances. Supporting women to
participate in work is both an economic
and social priority for Bradford: it’s good
for women, families, business and our
economy. Boosting women’s workforce
participation is essential to raising living
standards, increasing the productivity of
our businesses and securing Bradford’s
future prosperity.
Economic independence is an enabler,
for both women and men, to exercise
control over their lives and to make
genuine choices. At an individual level,
the benefits of lifting women’s workforce
participation include additional financial
security for women and their families
by way of higher lifetime earnings, and
increased savings for retirement. The
rewards grow into the future because a job
today means more career opportunities
and higher earning potential tomorrow.
There are also social, health and
wellbeing benefits of work to be gained
for women and their families rooted in the
economic independence that employment
provides.

in all areas of the economic life of our
District. It is important to work with
business to ensure they understand
the benefits of increasing women’s
participation and progression to senior
management and leadership roles across
all areas of the economy.
Delivering greater diversity and breaking
down the barriers to women in work,
whether by industry, occupation or parttime status, has clear economic benefits
for business, allowing organisations to
attract and retain high performing staff
through accessing a wider and more
diverse talent pool. Equally, it is well
established that gender diversity at
all levels, board level, executive level
and team level, means better financial
performance.

A key driver of our employment growth
has to be to women’s full participation

Page 80
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

43

PRIORITY ACTION 13

The District will work to encourage more
families to take up their early years child
care entitlement to provide parents with
more choice and opportunity to work. A
more affordable, accessible and flexible
child care system will support families so
they can choose their child care around
their work, rather than limiting their work
hours to suit their child care. We will
also encourage employers to offer more
flexible working arrangements that will
allow their workforce greater choice and
opportunity in determining how they blend
work and family and enables parents to
work or work more.
We will work to improve gender balance
in both occupations and industries. At the
moment men and women still gravitate
to traditional occupation areas based on
outdated perceptions of the limits placed
on career pathways by their gender. A
key step-change is to ensure that young
people are encouraged to follow career
and learning pathways that are not based
on gender, or other, stereotypes but on
their personal aspirations. In particular,
we will encourage more of our young
people to consider STEM-related learning
and careers.

Establish SkillsHouse
as a Bradford ‘onestop’ system for service
delivery to support
local employers to find
and recruit the talent
they need
The District will work to develop
SkillsHouse as the single gateway that
connects individuals and businesses with
the most relevant tools and resources
of the Bradford workforce development
network, helping students, job seekers,
workers, and employers create their own
unique paths to career and business
success.
We want to develop SkillsHouse as a
national leader in creating innovative,
demand-driven workforce solutions.
SkillsHouse has proven itself to be a
valuable resource demonstrating the need
for business intermediaries both locally
and nationally.
Since SkillsHouse launched in 2015 to
support the opening of the Broadway
Shopping Centre it has now helped over
a thousand unemployed job seekers to
be placed in our growing list of employer
partners. It has created opportunities to
increase economic mobility for Bradford
residents and solving talent solutions of
local businesses.
SkillsHouse’s mission is to close

Page 81
44

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

the workforce skills gap and assist
unemployed job-seekers in re-entering the
workforce. It works with local employers
to identify their recruitment needs and
matches them with qualified unemployed
local job seekers. SkillsHouse also
help employers fund customised and
on-the-job training programmes so that
candidates have the necessary skills to
succeed from day one of employment.
Being unemployed or underemployed
and searching for a job is a daunting
challenge. SkillsHouse provides a source
for jobs with local employers committed
to recruiting local talent. SkillsHouse
goes beyond just listing job opportunities;
the team begins with establishing deep
relationships with employer partners,
then securing commitments to employ
job seekers submitted by SkillsHouse.
The team at SkillsHouse then serves
as an advocate with the employer and
resource for getting jobseekers back to
work. Through this approach, SkillsHouse
has also proven successful at supporting
people from under-represented groups,
such as ex-offenders, into work.
SkillsHouse has the potential to help local
businesses grow through providing fullservice staffing solutions – from targeted
recruitment to customised recruitment
programmes — for businesses with
immediate and long-term recruitment
needs. This work will close the workforce
skills gap and move the unemployed into
open positions by directly responding
to the recruitment needs of employers.

SkillsHouse is able to connect businesses
with a new pool of immediately available,
diverse candidates and flexible incentive
programmes that help employers fill
vacant positions quickly and costeffectively.

PRIORITY ACTION 14
Develop an Inclusive
Community Learning
Plan
The District will develop a joint ‘Inclusive
Community Learning Plan’ that will clearly
establish how community learning and
development will be taken forward by
partners across Bradford.
The plan will be reviewed regularly and
will be amended to reﬂect any significant
changes or developments to ensure that
it remains a useful planning document for
collective impact and can demonstrate
its contribution to the realisation of the
District’s Economic Strategy.
The intention will be that Community
Learning and Development (CLD)
supports the wider career pathways
system and lead to outcomes such as:
p	Enabling the development of skills
(in particular literacy, numeracy
and English for Speakers of Other
Languages) that people can use in
employment, their community, further
learning or as parents and family

Page 82
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

45

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

members to support their children in
their important early years; and
p	Supporting all our young people
(in particular those who need more
choices and chances to achieve their
full potential) to become confident
individuals, successful learners,
and good citizens, empowering
communities to work together.
CLD is delivered by many community
partners across the District. All partners
involved in the delivery of CLD should aim
to deliver these objectives through:
p	community development;
p	youth work;
p	family learning and early intervention
work with children, young people and
families;
p	community-based adult learning,
including adult literacies and English for
speakers of other languages (ESOL);
p	volunteer development; and
p	learning support and guidance in the
community.

Questions for Consultation
1.	Do you support the Vision for the
Plan and is it appropriate for the
future Bradford economy?
2.	Do the Priority Actions under
“Building skills employers seek”
address the issues that make it
difficult for employers to meet their
skills demand?

3.	Will the Priority Actions in the
“Building skills employers seek”
section enable our residents to plan
their pathways into their chosen
careers?
4.	What are the most important actions
and priorities that will improve
businesses ability to meet their
workforce needs efficiently?
5.	Will the Priority Actions under
“Improving Job Quality” support
businesses to improve their
performance and raise productivity?
6.	Will the Priority Actions set out
in “Connecting our Communities
to Good Jobs and Careers”
support under-represented groups
to significantly increase their
participation in the Labour Market?

Page 83
46

Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

PEOPLE, SKILLS, PROSPERITY

7.	What are most important actions that
will support all our communities to
participate equally in employment?
8.	What are the most important
actions that will support the in-work
progression that is needed to support
social mobility and tackle poverty?
9.	What additional support is required for
businesses and residents if we are to
deliver economic growth that benefits
all out communities?
10.	The Priority Actions have a focus
on better coordination and use of
resources and in particular in respect
of research and intelligence, Adult
Education and Careers provision.
Are there other areas within the
employment and skills landscape that
would benefit from this approach?
11.	Will the Priority Actions do enough to
improve the District’s employment and
skills offer to support the achievement
of our employment, productivity and
skills targets as set in the Economic
Strategy (Pioneering, Confident and
Connected)?
12.	Is there further national or international
practice we could learn from?

Please let us know your views by emailing
EducationCovenant@bradford.gov.uk.
All views will be taken into account when developing the final version of this plan.
The deadline for responses is 22 February 2019

Page 84
Bradford’s Workforce Development Plan

47

Page 85

Appendix 3 – Skills Plan draft for consultation

Page 86

SKILLS FOR WORK
SUMMARY
1.1 Skills for Work (SFW) provision contribute to the Council’s commitment to both develop
better skills, more good jobs and a growing economy and a great start and good
schools for all our children as detailed in the District Plan.
1.2 SFW is made up of 3 distinct teams delivering a range of learning and skills
programmes to residents in the Bradford District, Apprenticeships, Employment
Support and Family and Community Learning. All funding is generated from external
sources.
1.3 SFW operates as a fully traded service to meet the learning and employment needs of
those at most disadvantage in the District. The delivery model enables SFW to provide
learning opportunities for parents, families and unemployed adults in addition to supporting
the creation of apprenticeships across the District by providing successful skills and
qualifications training matched to local need facilitating a clear pathway into further
learning and employment.
1.4 The service contributes significantly to council and local priorities through its role in
delivering provision to adults and young people with significant barriers to learning and/or
employment. SFW are within scope of the Ofsted common inspection framework and
continue to maintain the Good rating as judged by Ofsted inspection team in December
2017 whilst continuing to work toward outstanding.
2. Background
2.1 The Council has a long tradition of supporting central government funded employment
& skills programmes. SFW assist those with multiple barriers which are furthest from the
workplace to develop skills and gain qualifications to move into employment or onto further
training or apprenticeship.
2.2 Apprenticeships
SFW are the preferred training provider for apprenticeships within Bradford Council and
contribute to the Council’s required target for employing apprentices. Apprenticeships are
offered in one of the following vocational areas:
• Management,
• Team leader
• Business Administration
• Customer service
• Public Service Operational Delivery Officer
2.3
Working with the Learning and Development Academy, SFW support council apprentices
to gain valuable skills and qualifications including maths and English through individual
learning plans and dedicated assessment officers. Overall achievement rates continue
with an upward trend and in academic year17-18 grew to 81.5%; 10.5% above the
national average. The number of apprentices continues to grow and currently 42% of our
apprentices are based within Bradford Council departments. Recruitment is on-going
within the 2018-19 funding year predicted starts are about those of the previous year.

Page 87

SFW is the only local authority based provider delivering Public Service Operational
Delivery Officer (PSODO) apprentice standards within the wider Yorkshire Region and is
supporting other local council apprentices within the WYCA area. Current plans are in
place for SFW to become a centre of excellence for this provision.
2.4 Adult Community Learning
A range of accredited courses are delivered in Functional English, Functional Maths,
ESOL and ICT by a skilled and experienced peripatetic tutor team in community based
venues and schools across the district. Additionally qualifications in a range of vocational
and employability skills are delivered to unemployed participants to aid their search for
work. Classes take place within schools and children’s centres. With new courses being
delivered during the 2018-19 academic year, SFW have targeted working with schools
across the district that have been judged as inadequate or requiring improvement in their
most recent Ofsted inspections and are working with an additional 17 schools. Areas
within the District have been targeted to help those in greatest need recent engagement
activities have focussed in BD8 and BD5 post code areas.
2.4.1
Success rates on functional Skills continue to be good with 88.2% success rate on ESOL
and English programmes particularly with success rates in speaking and listening at 91%.
Maths success rates continue to be above the national average at 81.7%, however
success rates for level 1 reduced in academic year 2017-18 due to higher levels of early
leavers.
2.5 Family Learning
Workshops and short courses are designed and delivered to meet the needs of parents
and carers many of which include joint learning sessions with their children. The
programme is delivered in schools, community settings and voluntary organisations across
the District and supports families to learn how to support their children in school including
keeping up with the children in maths and English and Family Talk and Family Language
which help parents to understand what goes on in school and have the language skills to
participate in the wider community. Additionally family support workshops are popular as
they allow parents to increase their confidence and gain new skills; the range of support
available for families covers all age groups from early years onwards.
2.5.1Achievement rates on family learning courses are outstanding at 95.7% for academic
year 2017-18 and current in year achievements are 96.6% above the national average at
87%. Many learners on family learning programmes gain additional confidence which is
transferable to everyday life, particularly with helping their children with homework tasks
and communications with school and other agencies.
2.6 Employment Support Programmes
The Work Programme is a Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) funded provision for
people that are unemployed and claiming benefits. The programme has been in operation
since June 2011 and is currently in the final phase. New referrals ceased in March 2017
and programme activity is due to end in March 2019. Work Choice is also funded by DWP
that provides support to people with disabilities and health conditions facing complex
barriers to getting and keeping a job. The programme has been in operation since October
2010 this contract is in the final extension phase, and currently supports participants
employed by Industrial Services Group. This funding is due to cease in March 2019.SFW
will cease to deliver DWP programmes after this date. Both Work Choice and Work

Page 88

Programme have been replaced by the DWP Work and Health Programme, SFW is not
involved in the delivery of this replacement programme.
2.6 STEP Programme
SFW acts as a delivery partner for STEP working with those with health conditions and
disabilities to find and sustain work. SFW have delivered this programme since August
2018. As at January 2019 job starts meet profiled targets and qualification success rates
are 86%. Employer engagement activities are targeted at local employers who are
supported to recruit people with disabilities. Those with health conditions and disabilities
are able to seek advice and guidance on how to apply for jobs and managing their
condition while in work.
3. ADDITIONAL DELIVERY ACTIVITY
3.1 Family Learning Festival
A wide range of learning activity across the District is provided through SFW including an
annual Family Learning Festival which takes place in October in conjunction with a range
of local partners including libraries and museums continuing a long standing partnership
with the National Science and Media Museum. The festival is designed to encourage all
members of the family to learn as a collective group and to act as a recruitment device for
SFW and all delivery partners. In Oct 2018 over 500 people took part in the festival
including our crafty sessions and messy play with a theme of Create, Make, Build.
3.2 Ofsted Common Inspection Framework.
SFW continue to maintain the Ofsted judgement of Good. The well-established and clear
vision of managers and leaders underpin SFW’s contribution to wider council priorities. A
strong ethos of supporting those from the most disadvantaged backgrounds pervades.
SFW are an inclusive and welcoming environment for learners. Tutors model appropriate
attitudes and behaviours well, encouraging learners to consider how they can contribute
further to community life in the District. The strong performance management processes
enable swift improvement actions and ensure provision meets learner’s needs leading to
high achievement rates and pathways for next steps in many cases to higher level or
accredited courses. Safeguarding is judged to be effective with a well-planned training
programme for staff to maintain expertise in this area.
3.2.1 SFW main focus is to move toward being judged as outstanding. Quality
improvement plans are in place to support and develop staff to ensure outstanding
teaching learning and assessment becomes the norm through rigorous quality monitoring
and performance management. The introduction of additional qualifications and apprentice
standards have been verified by awarding bodies to ensure the highest standards are
maintained for teaching, assessment activity and examinations.
4
OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
None
5

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

5.1 SFW is a fully traded service. Current funding levels for community and family learning
are received as a direct grant from ESFA subject to success and achievement rates and
eligible spending criteria to support learner needs. In academic year 2018-19 SFW
received an additional 22% with a total budget of £766,000 funding for family and
community learning allowing SFW to assist and support many more parents and families

Page 89

to gain skills and progress into further learning. Apprenticeship funding is received from
levy payments within Bradford Council and local employers and is a growth area for SFW.
Continued business development activity is in place to source new funding streams.
6

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

6.1 Risks associated with the delivery of SFW programmes are the final phase of DWP
contracts and associated costs. Plans are in place to manage this process. Risk to
contract delivery and outputs on ESFA provision including apprenticeships is mitigated by
stringent contract monitoring procedures undertaken within the SFW team.
7
LEGAL APPRAISAL
No legal issues.
8
OTHER IMPLICATIONS
None
8.1
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
None
8.2
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None
8.3
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
None
8.4
COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None
8.5
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
None
8.6
TRADE UNION
None
8.7
WARD IMPLICATIONS
There are no Ward or area implications as SFW supports residents in all areas of Bradford
and the District with particular focus on Bradford and Keighley
8.8
IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
None
8.9
ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
None
8.10 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None
9.
OPTIONS
No Options

Page 90

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 That members note the content of this report and the continued success of SFW and
its delivery of learning and apprenticeships across the District
11.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: 2017-18 Community and Adult Learning Outcome Tracking -Progression
Pathways
12.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 91

Appendix 1
2017-18 Community and Adult Learning Outcome Tracking
Progression Pathways
SFW offers advice and guidance to assist learners to make choices
about their future progression options for further learning or
employment. However the majority of learning programmes are aimed at
those who are at the beginning of their learning journey or who have not
engaged in learning for some considerable time, with multiple barriers to
overcome. Entering employment may be a future aspiration which
requires learners to move into further learning as their next step. Many
parents who access Family learning provision do so without employment
as their aim or required destination and SFW provision is a stepping
stone to mainstream FE options.
Leaver Destination Data Summary
Outcome

Destination

No

Employment
16+ hours pw
Less than 16 hours pw
Self employed 16+ hours pw
Self-employed Less 16 hours pw

Education
FE Full time
FE Part time
HE
Apprenticeship

Voluntary
Work
Other
Unable to contact
Not known
Other

Unemployed
Not looking for work
Looking for work

TOTAL
LEAVERS

%

120

17.6%

75
32
7
6

11.0%
4.7%
1.0%
0.9%

204

29.9%

4
198
1
1

0.6%
29.0%
0.1%
0.1%

31
49

4.5%
7.2%

12
29
8

1.8%
4.3%
1.2%

278

40.8%

106
172

15.5%
25.2%

682

Page 92

Agenda Item 8/

Report of the Chair of the Regeneration and
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee to the
meeting to be held on Tuesday 26 February 2019

AK
Subject:
REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19

Summary statement:
This report presents the Committee Work Programme 2018-19

Cllr Rizwana Jamil
Chair – Regeneration and Environment
O&S Committee
Report Contact:

Licia Woodhead
Overview and Scrutiny Lead
Phone: (01274) 432119 / 432574
E-mail: licia.woodhead@bradford.gov.uk

Portfolio:
Regeneration, Planning & Transport
Education, Employment and Skills
Healthy People and Places
Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Regeneration and Environment

Page 93

1.
1.1

SUMMARY
This report presents the Committee’s Work Programme 2018-19.

2.
2.1

BACKGROUND
Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required by the Constitution of the
Council to prepare a work programme (Part 3E – Overview and Scrutiny Procedure
Rules, Para 1.1).

3.

REPORT ISSUES

3.1

Appendix 1 of this report presents the Work Programme for 2018-19.

3.2

Work planning cycle
Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that ‘work
programming should be a continuous process’. It is important to regularly review
work programmes so that important or urgent issues that come up during the year
are able to be scrutinised. In addition, at a time of limited resources, it should also
be possible to remove projects which have become less relevant or timely. For this
reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly reviewed
by Members throughout the municipal year.

4.

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL
None

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
None

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
None

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
N/A

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
N/A

Page 94

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
N/A

7.6

TRADE UNION
N/A

7.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
N/A

7.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
N/A

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the Work programme 2018-19 continues to be regularly reviewed during the
year.

11.

APPENDICES

11.1

Appendix 1 – Regeneration & Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work
Programme 2018-19

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny
Regeneration and Environment O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir/Licia tel - 2574/2119

Work Programme 2018/19
Agenda
Tuesday, 26th March 2019 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 11/03/2019. Report deadline 13/03/2019.
1) Housing Standards.
2) Empty Homes.
3) Energy Efficiency of Private Sector rented Housing.
4) White Rose Energy.
5) Biodiversity Scrutiny Review.

Page 97

6) Draft Single use plastics Scrutiny Review Report.
7) Regeneration and Environment O&S Work Programme.

Tuesday, 16th April 2019 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 01/04/2019. Report deadline 03/04/2019.
1) Cultural Strategy
2) Bradford Beck Pilot Study
3) Bradford District Cycling Strategy

4) Active Bradford

5) Air Quality

11th February 2019

Description

Report

The Committee will consider a report on the work of the Housing
Standards Team to include details of the impact of the New Legislation.
The Committee will consider a report on the work of the Empty Homes
Team.
The Committee will consider a report on energy efficiency in private
rented sector accomodation..
The Committee will receive an update report on the work of White
Rose Energy.
The Committee will receive a report monitoring the recommendations
from the detailed scrutiny of Biodiversity.
Key findings and recommendations from the Scrutiny Review.
Members will consider the 2018-19 work programme and make
changes as appropriate.

Julie Rhodes.

The Committee will receive a report on the Cultural Strategy.
The Committee will receive a report from the Friends of Bradford's
Becks.
That the Strategic Director, Place, be requested to provide a progress
report, in 12 months time, on the implementation of the Bradford District
Cycle Strategy and Action Plan Top Ten priorities, and provide figures
relating to accidents to cyclists.
The Committee will receive a report on Active Bradford to include an
update on the Active Bradford Strategy and the pilot scheme, the
development of the Sports Leisure Card and details of the Olympic
legacy.

Julie Rhodes.
Julie Rhodes/Pete Betts.
Neill Morrison.
Danny Jackson.
Mustansir Butt.
Mustansir Butt/Licia
Woodhead.

Bobsie Robinson
Chris Eaton/Edward
Norfolk/Barney Lerner
Julian Jackson/Andrew
Marshall/Derek Jones

Zuby Hamard

Sally Jones/Andrew
Whittles/Ralph Saunders.
Page 1 of 1

This page is intentionally left blank

